
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Children and Young People 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

Tuesday 11 December 2012 at 7.00 pm 
Committee Rooms 1 and 2, Brent Town Hall, Forty 
Lane, Wembley, HA9 9HD 

 
Membership: 
 
Members First alternates Second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
Mashari (Chair) S Choudhary Hector 
Cheese (Vice-Chair) CJ Patel Sneddon 
Aden Oladapo Harrison 
Al-Ebadi Denselow RS Patel 
Kansagra Baker HM Patel 
Matthews Leaman Lorber 
Mitchell Murray Daly Ogunro 
Pavey Krupa Sheth Hossain 
 
Statutory Co-optees Non-statutory Co-optees Observers 
Alloysius Frederick 
Dr Nanda Kumar 
Elsie Points 
Vacancy 

Mrs Hawra Imame 
Dr J Levison 

Mr A Carter 
Ms J Cooper 
Mrs L Gouldbourne 
Ms C Jolinon 
Mr B Patel 
Brent Youth Parliament 
representatives 

 
 
For further information contact: Lisa Weaver, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1358 lisa.weaver@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: www.brent.gov.uk/committees 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 

Public Document Pack



 



 

3 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on the agenda. 
 

 

2 Deputations (if any)  
 

 

3 Minutes of the last meeting held on 11 October 2012  
 

1 - 8 

4 Brent Youth Parliament update  
 

 

 The committee will receive an oral update on the work of the Brent Youth 
Parliament. 
 

 

5 Plan for Children and Families in Brent  
 

9 - 52 

 The purpose of this report is to set out a three year partnership Plan for 
Children and Families in Brent (PCFB) for the attention of the Children & 
Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The Plan builds on the 
achievements of the previous Children and Young People’s Plan (2010-
12) and brings together in a single document our vision and key priorities 
for improving outcomes for children and families in Brent. The PCFB 
strengthens the coordination and integration of a range of strategic plans 
(set out in Appendix C) and is underpinned by a performance 
management framework, which will help to monitor and drive forward 
improvements. Report will be presented by Anna Janes 
 

 

 Ward Affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Krutika Pau, Director 
of Children and Families 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 3126  

   krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk  

6 Working with Families Initiative  
 

 

 Verbal update and presentation on how the Council, with it’s partners, will assist 
families with children and young people in need to ensure they enjoy a good 
quality of life and develop as confidently and responsibly as possible. How it will 
improve the educational outcomes and promote the positive well-being of 
families in Brent. Presentation by Sara Williams 

 



 

4 
 

 

7 Corporate Parenting  
 

To 
follow 

 This report will cover the role of Corporate Parenting and explain the 
model Brent has adopted through best practice with other boroughs. It 
provides information on looked after children in Brent, the arrangements 
for them, their outcomes, including educational outcomes, their views, 
their work through the 'Care in Action group' participation. Additionally the 
report will also cover the virtual school arrangements for Looked After 
Children. 
 

 

8 Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme  
 

53 - 64 

 The Work Programme is attached. 
 

 

9 Date of next meeting  
 

 

 The next meeting of the Children and Young People Overview and 
Scrutiny meeting is scheduled for 12 February 2013 
 

 

10 Any other urgent business  
 

 

 Notice of items raised under this heading must be given in writing to the 
Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the meeting in 
accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
• Toilets are available on the second floor. 
• Catering facilities can be found on the first floor near the Paul Daisley Hall. 
• A public telephone is located in the foyer on the ground floor, opposite the 

Porters’ Lodge 
 

 



 

 
MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
Thursday 11 October 2012 at 7.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Mashari (Chair), Cheese (Vice-Chair) Aden, Al-Ebadi, Kansagra, 
Mitchell Murray, Pavey, Mr A Frederick, Ms E Points, Dr Levison, Ms J Cooper, 
Mrs L Gouldbourne and Brent Youth Parliament representatives 

 
Also present: Councillors Arnold 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: Councillors Mrs H Imame 

 
 

1. Declaration of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
None declared. 
 

2. Deputations (if any)  
 
There were no deputations.  
 

3. Minutes of the last meeting held on 19 July 2012  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record subject to 
the following amendments: -  
 

• Under declaration of personal and prejudicial interests, it should read that 
Councillor Cheese was a member of the committee for the Kilburn locality, 
not Chair of the committee.  

 
4. Brent Youth Parliament update  

 
Thivya Jeyashanker  (Co-Chair of the Brent Youth Parliament (BYP)) advised that 
the 2 year term of office for the current BYP members was drawing to a close and 
elections would be held on 17 November 2012.  
 
Amer Hajan (Youth Worker) informed the committee that he had been undertaking 
work to strengthen the relationship between the BYP and Brent’s schools. Visits by 
BYP members to the schools had been received very well and as a result, there 
had been a greater number of nominations made for candidates for the forthcoming 
BYP elections. Work was also being carried out to strengthen the role of the BYP 
executive by creating greater clarity and focus around their duties. The committee 
was further advised that a new, state of the art, youth centre for young people aged 
13 to 19 would be opening in Brent at the start of November 2012. There would be 
two opening events for the Roundwood Youth Centre and members were reminded 
that should they wish to attend the event on 1 November 2012, they needed to 
respond to their e-invites. A further opening event for young people would be held 
on 2 November 2012.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

 
Thivya Jeyashanker provided a summary of some of the recent key activities 
undertaken by the BYP. At its meeting on 21 September 2012, representatives of 
the NHS and Safeguarding team attended in order to consult young people on 
various related issues including access to mental health and medical advice in 
schools. Bullying had been raised as an issue of particular significance and the 
links between this and mental health difficulties had been discussed. Councillor Van 
Kalwala had also attended this meeting to discuss the issue of gangs in Brent. A 
UK wide activity run by the UK youth Parliament, in which young people were asked 
to vote on the most important issues to them, would culminate in a debate in the 
House of Commons on 23 November 2012. The issue receiving the highest amount 
of votes would form the subject of a campaign run by the Youth Council. Thivya 
Jeyashanker concluded by reminding the committee that the last session of the 
current BYP would be held on 27 November and the attendance of councillors 
would be welcome.  
 
The Chair thanked Amer Hajan for his hard work and several members of the 
committee expressed their thanks for the contribution of the BYP representatives at 
the Children and Young People O&S meetings. The Chair noted that the BYP 
would have its own office at the new Civic Centre.  
 
RESOLVED – That the oral update on the work of the BYP be noted.  
 
 

5. Safeguarding and Looked After Children Inspection Action Plan  
 
Graham Genoni (Assistant Director Social Care Division) presented a report to the 
committee setting out the progress achieved by Brent Social Care against the 
action plan which had been developed following the recent Ofsted and Care Quality 
Commission Inspection of Safeguarding and Looked After Children (SLAC) 
provision in Brent. Brent had been awarded an adequate grading overall and a 
good grading for four service components. The adequate rating meant that there 
had been no major concerns about the safety of children in Brent, but that it had 
been felt that some additional aspects could have been improved. 50% of local 
authorities across the country had achieved and adequate rating, 25% had 
achieved inadequate and a further 25% had achieved a good or outstanding rating. 
The committee was advised that a new inspection regime was currently being 
designed for May 2013 and a new temporary inspection framework had been put in 
place for the interim period. Under this interim regime, those services which had 
been awarded inadequate and adequate ratings could be subject to a further 
inspection. The evolving inspection regime reflected a heightening of the expected 
service standards and it was recognised that it was becoming increasingly difficult 
to achieve ratings of adequate and above.  
 
Graham Genoni explained that in preparation for this potential further inspection, 
the council was working hard to address the issues raised in the recent SLAC 
inspection and those challenges that would be faced by the service in the 
immediate future. At present the council was working on its own assessment of its 
SLAC services and would be writing a report to identify the existing strengths and 
weaknesses. Independent challenge and support was also being sought from 
colleagues in other local authorities. The council was in the process of developing 
its early help services. A council-wide project around early help services had just 

Page 2



3 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

progressed to the initiation stage and work was also being done to explore how the 
borough’s children’s centres could be developed as a resource for children of a 
wider age range. It was envisaged that Children’s Centres could provide a medium 
through which various preventative services could be delivered to families to 
provide early-stage support, prior to social care intervention. It was hoped that such 
actions would help to reduce the number of Looked After Children (LAC) in Brent. 
Work was also being undertaken to reduce the number of irrelevant referrals being 
dealt with directly by Brent Social Care via the development of a Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub, which would ensure that the most appropriate service acted on 
each referral. The Council was also seeking to support social workers in accessing 
greater learning development opportunities and had also recently conducted a 
survey to better understand the views of Brent’s social workers, particularly in 
relation to work pressures.   
 
In the subsequent discussion, the committee raised several issues and queries. 
Councillor Pavey noted that children’s centres were now forming a key focus in the 
development of early help services and queried why the children’s centres had 
been subject to significant funding cuts in recent years. He further noted that the 
government had recently reduced early intervention grant funding by £436m and 
queried what impact this would have on the provision of early intervention services 
in Brent. Councillor Cheese sought further information in relation to early help 
services and sought assurances that children would not be allowed to stay in 
unsafe family surroundings. Councillor Cheese also advised that monitoring would 
be essential in ensuring that children whose families were in receipt of early help 
support services were not at risk of harm and queried whether the council had 
sufficient resources to enable effective monitoring. Councillor Al-Ebadi sought 
clarity regarding the responsibilities of the council to Looked After Children following 
their eighteenth birthday and raised a concern about the impact of the changes to 
the welfare system on vulnerable young people and, particularly, the removal of 
housing benefit from those aged under 25 years old.  Councillor Mitchell Murray 
sought details of the percentage of social workers who were permanent members 
of staff against the percentage of locum staff. Councillor Kansagra queried whether 
social workers were able to gain any practical experience prior to graduating and 
sought further information regarding the regular inspection cycle and the possible 
outcomes that could be awarded to the council. The Chair noted that an 
independent audit of the council’s decision making regarding Child Protection Plans 
had recently been conducted and sought details of the outcome. The Chair also 
raised a concern that the voices of LAC in Brent were not being adequately heard, 
noting that at present there was no LAC representation on the BYP. The Chair 
further requested that officers highlight the key differences between the previous 
and new Children and Young People Plans and explain how these differences 
addressed the issues raised by the Ofsted inspection.  
 
In response to the queries raised by the committee, Graham Genoni advised that 
the SLAC inspections usually took place on a three year cycle. There were four 
possible outcomes; inadequate, adequate, good and outstanding. With the 
introduction of the new inspection regime it was expected that more and more 
authorities would be graded as inadequate.  
 
Graham Genoni further explained that the Children’s Centres had suffered following 
the loss of sure start funding and that budgets had been reduced in response to this 
loss of central funding; however, the council had worked hard to keep Brent’s 

Page 3



4 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

Children’s Centres open. The recent reductions to the early intervention grant were 
indicative of the current tensions between central and local government. Funding 
from the troubled families initiative would be used to offset the reduced early 
intervention funding but overall there would be less money for early intervention 
services than there had previously been. It was envisioned that early intervention 
services would help to reduce the number of LAC in Brent but children would only 
be supported to remain at home where it was safe and appropriate for them to do 
so. Due to the high costs associated with maintaining children in the care system, 
the council could afford to put a lot of support and monitoring in place for a family 
without exceeding the level resources that might otherwise have been expended. 
The Council maintained responsibility for LAC until the age of 18; however in some 
circumstances had an enduring responsibility of care up to the age of 21, or 24 if 
the individual was engaged in higher education. The support provided to those care 
leavers included social worker support, assistance with accommodation and 
general advice and guidance. Tony Hirsch (Head of Policy and Performance) 
advised that at the present there was limited information from the government 
regarding their plans to reduce housing benefit to those aged under 25; however, it 
was expected that there would be exemptions and it was possible that these may 
include care leavers.  
 
Graham Genoni informed the committee that Brent no longer operated a course for 
Trainee Social Workers as it had been considered to be more cost effective to 
recruit qualified social workers. The Council was acutely aware that newly qualified 
social workers did not have the broad experience and skills base to draw upon and, 
in line with the professional framework for social workers, a probationary first year 
of employment, or ‘assessed supported year in employment’ (ASYE), was 
obligatory and ensured that the council put effective support in to place for these 
members of staff. Social workers were able to gain some experience prior to 
graduating which they obtained by working for local authorities with appropriate 
supervision. Often those social workers would apply to work for the local authority 
with which they had their placement. Up until recently, 85-90% of social workers in 
Brent had been permanent staff, this had recently started to decline and actions 
were being taken to address this issue. There was a greater number of agency staff 
concentrated in the LAC team than in the front-line Safeguarding team. The council 
was seeking to better understand the motivations behind social workers moving 
between different authorities. It was known that salary was not the only key issue 
and that workloads could also form a significant determining factor. Brent currently 
worked with other West London boroughs to promote the benefits of working for 
West London authorities and to provide a joint training programme for social 
workers.  
 
Councillor Mitchell Murray advised that competition between the London boroughs 
to attract social workers was extremely counter-productive for London and that 
Brent should deliver a strong message to the other boroughs that a joined up 
approach to the recruitment of social workers should be pursued. Graham Genoni 
confirmed that he would relay this to colleagues in other authorities.  
 
Turning to the queries raised by the Chair, Graham Genoni explained that the 
independent audit of the decisions taken to remove children from child protection 
plans had been conducted and the report had been very positive. It had found that 
Child Protection Conference decisions were robust and the thresholds had been 
properly applied. Further information would be forthcoming and would be provided 

Page 4



5 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

to the committee as an update. With regard to the lack of representation for LAC on 
the BYP, this would be looked into and addressed. There was a participation worker 
for LAC, and Care in Action Group (CiAG) meetings were held regularly to look at 
issues of importance to LAC. These meetings in turn fed into the corporate 
parenting group. A report could be brought to the Committee on the work of the 
CiAG.   
 
Anna Janes (Head of Children and Families Policy and Performance) advised that 
there were some substantial differences between the previous and current Children 
and Young People plans. A key overriding difference was that the current plan was 
holistic in intent, focusing on how children could grow and develop in the context of 
issues affecting the whole family. The Plan referenced and linked in with several 
other plans and initiatives, including the early intervention and troubled families 
agendas and the Child Poverty Strategy. It was also applicable to partner agencies 
that worked with children and families and the council would be holding these 
agencies to account in terms of their contribution to the priorities set out in the Plan. 
The new Plan was more streamlined than its predecessor and set out 3 key 
priorities with 8 outcomes, compared to the 6 key priorities and 42 indicators of the 
previous plan. 
 
With reference to paragraph 5.1 of the report Ms Points noted that the plans in 
place to address the high caseloads in Care Planning and Localities included 
closing some cases down and referring them to emerging services under the 
troubled families agenda. Ms Points voiced a concern that some of the worst 
safeguarding cases often had extensive histories of repeated involvement with 
various services and queried whether closing cases down in this manner would 
merely lead to worse incidents for these families in the future or would lead to cases 
becoming lost between services. Graham Genoni explained that Brent tracked 
when cases entered the system and there was a low level of cases repeatedly 
entering the social care system; this indicated that decisions taken to close cases 
appeared to be robust. In introducing a raft of early help services, the council was 
recognising that not every case required the type of support and intervention 
provided by a social worker and that in some instances, other professionals would 
be better suited to assist a family. The handing over of cases between services was 
always a risk area and the necessary procedures would be applied to ensure 
continuity between service areas.  
 
The Chair requested a copy of the report of the independent auditors with regard to 
the council’s Child Protection Plans.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 
That the progress made against the Children and Young People Action plan be 
noted.  
 

6. Child Poverty Strategy 2011 - 2021  
 
Tony Hirsch (Head of Policy and Performance) introduced a report to the committee 
outlining Brent’s Child Poverty Strategy 2011 – 2021 and detailing the reasons for 
its development. The Child Poverty Act 2010 required all local authorities to conduct 
a child poverty needs assessment for their areas and subsequently, to publish a 
Child Poverty Strategy. Brent’s child poverty needs assessment had been 

Page 5



6 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

completed in August 2011. Brent currently ranked within the poorest performing 10 
per cent against the Child Wellbeing Index (CWI), which measured child wellbeing 
across a range of different domains, including material wellbeing, education, health 
and housing. There were currently 34.4 per cent of children under the age of 16 
living in poverty in Brent, with the highest rates of poverty being concentrated in the 
wards of Stonebridge, Harlesden, South Kilburn and parts of Welsh Harp, Barnhill 
and Alperton. Stonebridge ward contained two of the worst ranked areas in England 
for the CWI.  
 
Tony Hirsch advised that Brent’s Child Poverty Strategy applied to the entire council 
and its partners and had been developed through close collaboration with partner 
agencies and organisations. It was therefore, a high level strategy which set key 
priorities and objectives for all of Brent. It was anticipated that this strategy would 
be referenced in other strategies, such as the Children and Young People Plan, 
and it was in these documents that detailed actions, developed against the overall 
priorities of the Child Poverty Strategy, would be set out. The strategy set out 6 key 
priorities for Brent: reduce the poverty levels of children living low income 
households; support troubled families; reduce the NEET group; improve the 
financial capacity of parents; support Looked after children and children at the edge 
of care; and, improve the health and wellbeing of children with a focus on reducing 
obesity, tooth decay and poor mental health. The strategy was a long term 
document reflecting that the intergenerational factors influencing poverty were 
longstanding, cultural and vulnerable to the performance of the national economy. 
The strategy would be reviewed annually and would be monitored by Partners for 
Brent. The action plan and associated performance indicators would be monitored 
by the Executive of Partners for Brent, as well as the individual service areas and 
partners responsible for their operational delivery.  
 
During members’ discussion, the committee raised a number of issues. Councillor 
Mitchell Murray commented that the priorities set out in the strategy were very 
vague and did not adhere to the expected standards of being specific, measurable, 
attainable, relevant and time-bound (SMART). Councillor Mitchell Murray added 
that it was important not to unrealistically raise peoples hopes and further, queried 
what the report meant when it indicated that there were ‘no financial implications’. 
Dr Levison further reiterated that it was important to ensure that the use of 
language was appropriate and not misleading in terms of the council’s achievable 
objectives. Councillor Pavey expressed concern that the report did not adequately 
address how changes would be made but instead focussed on what changes were 
desired. Councillor Al-Ebadi advised that the action plan was not sufficient and that 
the strategy should be far more comprehensive. He further requested that a report 
be provided by officers regarding the implications of the new welfare reforms, and 
particularly their impact on child poverty in the borough.  
 
In response to members’ queries Tony Hirsch advised that he accepted that the 
Strategy needed to be developed further and the action plan needed to be more 
robust. The strategy had not been intended to set out a detailed action plan but 
rather be a high level guiding document, to which other strategies should make 
reference. This approach had been employed in recognition of the complexity of the 
issues contributing to child poverty, but perhaps a stronger emphasis should be 
placed on child poverty in all council decision making. In stating that there were ‘no 
financial implications’ to the report, it was meant that the report did not propose any 
additional costs for members to consider. The actions encompassed by the strategy 

Page 6



7 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

were not new initiatives, rather the strategy was an expression of the work that the 
council was already doing or planning to do to mitigate child poverty in Brent. The 
strategy would be revisited and a regular update report on the strategy could be 
submitted to the meeting to address what actions had been taken and how these 
contributed towards achieving the objectives set out in the strategy. A report was 
due to be submitted to the Executive on the impact of welfare reforms on Brent.  
 
Ms Goudlbourne expressed concern that teachers had not been consulted with 
regard to the strategy and explained that the Brent Teachers’ Panel represented all 
teachers, including head teachers, in Brent and it was therefore important that 
officers made use of this channel of consultation. Ms Cooper commented on the 
importance of a joined up and co-ordinated approach to decisions which impacted 
the lives of children, noting that it had not been uncommon for different departments 
and organisations to pursue dissimilar and counter-productive approaches to the 
same issues.  
 
The Chair noted that the excitement that had accompanied the strategy when it had 
been initially proposed appeared to have died down and that it was evident that 
further work was needed on the strategy. As much of the detail was contained in 
other strategies, and particularly, the Children and Young People plan, this should 
be brought to the committee for further scrutiny. It would also be important for a 
lead officer to be responsible for the strategy to aid clear lines of accountability. 
Anna Janes (Head of Children and Families Policy and Performance) advised that 
the named person would be in the near future.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 

i. that the report on the Child Poverty Strategy be noted 
ii. that officers revisit the strategy and the action plan to address the concerns 

raised by the committee 
iii. that regular update reports on the Child Poverty Strategy be submitted to the 

committee.  
 

7. Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme  
 
The Chair drew members’ attention to the work programme for the committee and 
welcomed any comments or suggestions. Councillor Pavey suggested that the cuts 
to the early intervention grant would benefit from further scrutiny.  
 
The Chair advised that a new column had been added to the work programme so 
that the committee’s recommendations could be recorded. This would aid the 
committee in reviewing the work it had undertaken throughout the year. The Chair 
further proposed that the committee attend a pre-meeting to discuss any issues and 
lines of questioning prior to the committee meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: -  
 

i. that the work programme be amended to include: -  
a. a report on the impact of the cuts to the early intervention grant 
b. the Child Poverty Strategy update reports 

 

Page 7



8 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 11 October 2012 

ii. that pre-meetings be held immediately prior to the meetings of the 
committee.  

 
 

8. Date of next meeting  
 
The committee noted that the next meeting was scheduled to take place on 11 
December 2012.  
 

9. Any other urgent business  
 
There was no urgent business.  
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.30 pm 
 
 
 
CLLR MASHARI 
Chair 
 

Page 8



1 
 

 
 

Children & Families Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
11th December 2012 

Report from the Director of Children 
and Families 

 
  

Wards Affected: 
ALL 

A Plan for Children & Families in Brent (2012-2015) 

 
 

1.0 Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out a three year partnership Plan for 

Children and Families in Brent (PCFB) for the attention of the Children & 
Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The Plan builds on the 
achievements of the previous Children and Young People’s Plan (2010-12) and 
brings together in a single document our vision and key priorities for improving 
outcomes for children and families in Brent. The PCFB strengthens the 
coordination and integration of a range of strategic plans (set out in Appendix 
C) and is underpinned by a performance management framework, which will 
help to monitor and drive forward improvements.  

 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Members are requested to note the content of the PCFB and that the priorities 

and outcomes will be fully integrated in service area plans and priorities. 
  

 
3.0 Detail 
 
3.1 The Children Act 2004 required each Local Authority in England and Wales to 

publish a Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) which set out its strategy for 
discharging its functions in relation to all children and young people in the area.  
This was enshrined further in law with The Children’s Trust Board (Children and 
Young People’s Plan) (England) Regulations 2010 which passed the 
responsibility for preparing and publishing  the CYPP to the Local Authority 
Children’s Trust Board.  The legislation stated that the CYPP had to set out the 
agreed joint strategy of the Board partners for co-operating with each other with 
a view to improving children and young people’s well-being in the local area. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



2 
 

 
3.2 The Coalition Government revoked these regulations and removed the 

requirement for the publication for a CYPP, however, they stated that a Plan 
could still be produced where “it made sense locally”. Most local authorities 
continue to have a single plan for children and young people which 
demonstrates a formal commitment from partners to improve outcomes for local 
children.  Regardless of any legislative changes, during an inspection process, 
Ofsted are likely to take a dim view of an authority that did not have a plan 
setting out its ambition and vision for children and young people in the area. 

 
3.3 In January 2012 Brent Children’s Partnership (BCP), formerly our Children’s 

Trust, made a decision to continue to have a strategic plan evidencing their 
commitment and drive to improve the lives of children and families in Brent.  
This has resulted in the Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012 – 15. 

 
3.4 BCP is committed to continue to improve services and support to children, 

young people and their families and to do so by focusing on the areas where 
partners can work together to make the most difference.  We have therefore 
identified the following three strategic priorities:- 

 
 Priority 1: Ensure that children and young people in our borough are 

healthy and safe 
 Safeguarding is a top priority if we are to ensure our children and young people 

are healthy, safe and protected from harm, abuse and neglect.  Through early 
intervention, making a healthy start and by providing effective support for 
children and families, we will reduce the number of children coming into care or 
becoming subject of child protection plans and improve outcomes for children 
with disabilities. 

 
 Priority 2: Narrow the gap between those children who do well and those 

who need extra support to thrive, so the aspirations of every Brent child 
are realised. Also to ensure that there are sufficient school places to meet 
the continuing increase in demand 

 We will consider all possible strategies and initiatives to increase the supply of 
school places.  We will improve the educational attainment of all children and 
young people, including looked after children, children with special educational 
needs and /or disabilities and children from black and ethnic minorities.  We will 
focus on closing the gap between those who do well and those who may need 
extra support to thrive, to enable successful progression into adult life and 
employability. 

 
 Priority 3: to fully integrate services to develop resilient families 
 We are committed to delivering integrated services that focus on families and 

are designed to identify need early and provide targeted support and protection.  
We shall also continue to ensure that universal services are in place for all 
children, young people and families.  We will help children get a healthy start in 
life and improve emotional health and well being, tackle child poverty and 
support children and young people to take part in positive activities as well as 
giving parents the skills to get back to work. 

 
 
3.5 These emerged through a process of reviewing priorities from the previous two 

Children & Young People’s Plans and identifying areas which continue to 
require improvement, from looking at the profile of children and young people in 

Page 10



3 
 

Brent in conjunction with the Joint Strategic Needs Analysis and the Child 
Poverty Needs Assessment, and by examining emerging issues. 

 
 
3.6 The PCFB has a robust action plan which provides the framework for ensuring 

that progress is made.  The actions relate to a performance management 
framework which is based on a number of national performance indicators, 
together with locally developed indicators and key milestones for completion of 
actions.  This includes the measures relating to children’s services that are 
included in the Children & Families Performance Improvement Plan and in 
agreement with NHS Brent. Over the next three years, this will be used to 
Support delivery of the outcomes and actions identified in this plan and will be 
reviewed at Brent Children’s Partnership meetings. 
 
 

3.7 The PCFB has been developed through consultation with service areas in the 
Council and our partners, with children and young people and with parents and 
carers.  Improving the lives of children and young people in Brent is 
everybody’s business and everyone across the Council has a role to play in 
making this happen.  

 
 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
 None 
 

  
 
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
 None 
  
 
 
6.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 the Plan has strong objectives which cover the diversity of Brent well and we 

have not established any grounds which would disadvantage any groups or 
individuals. 

 
  

 
7.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications (if appropriate) 

 
There are no accommodation issues contained within this report. 
  

 
 
Contact Officer: Anna Janes, Head of Children & Families Policy & 
Performance 
 
 
Chesterfield House, 9 Park Lane, Wembley Middlesex HA9 7RW. 

Page 11



4 
 

Tel: 020 8 937 4735.   
Email: anna.janes@brent.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Director of Children & Families 
Krutika Pau 

Page 12



1A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

A Plan for Children and 
Families in Brent

2012-15

“Making a change 
for the better”

Page 13



2 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-20152

We will have the highest ambition for 
all our children and young people

Page 14



3A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Contents 

Foreword   4

Vision for children and families  5 

Making this vision reality   6

Working together to achieve this vision   8

What is Brent Like?  10

Improvements in the last two years   13

Outcomes for children and families  18

How these outcomes have been decided  23

The challenges we face   24

Addressing the challenges  25

Diagrammatic representation of key priorities, 

outcomes and related actions for A Plan for Children 

and Families in Brent 2012-2015  30

PCFB Action plan   31

Appendix A: 

Brent partnership arrangements   34

Appendix B:

PCFB priorities and links to Brent’s other 

strategies and priorities  35

Appendix C: 

Other strategies that link to PCFB  36

3Page 15



4 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Foreword

Our Plan for Children and Families in Brent (PCFB) 2012-15 sets 

out the vision and aspirations of Brent Children’s Partnership 

(BCP) for children, young people and families. 

This is Brent’s third children and families’ plan. Together we 

have already achieved a great deal, but we aspire to do even 

better and continue improving services and support.

We know that some of our children and young people don’t 

do as well or get as much out of life as others. We need to 

make sure they get the support they need. In an increasingly 

challenging financial climate, it is also important to use our 

resources effectively across the partnership to achieve the best 

possible outcomes for children and families.

This plan was agreed by all in BCP and represents a shared 

commitment to helping all children, young people and 

families. It focuses on areas where partners can work together 

to make the most difference.

Krutika Pau 

Director, Children and Families, Brent Council

Councillor Mary Arnold

Lead Member for Children and Families, Brent Council

4 Page 16



5A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Vision for children and families

The vision and values expressed in our 

Plan for Children and Families continue 

to underpin everything that we do to 

improve outcomes for children, young 

people and their families in Brent. The 

shared vision for the whole of Brent 

remains:

Together, we will make Brent the best 

place in London to live, work and learn

The Brent Children’s Partnership’s vision 

statement and values fully reflect this 

vision as it applies to children, young 

people and their families:

Together with families, we will improve 

the lives and life chances of the children 

and young people of Brent by ensuring 

that they are healthy, stay safe, enjoy 

and achieve and maximise their life 

chances to the full.

Our vision is supported by our values 

which are embedded in the work of 

all partners and demonstrated in the 

delivery of our services. They are as 

follows:

s฀฀7E฀WILL฀PUT฀CHILDREN฀AND฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀

first every time

s฀฀4OGETHER฀WITH฀FAMILIES�฀WE฀WILL฀HAVE฀

the highest ambition for all our 

children and young people

s฀฀7E฀WILL฀MAKE฀A฀POSITIVE฀DIFFERENCE฀TO฀

the lives of children and young people.

5

Together, we will make Brent 
the best place in London to 
live, work and learn

Page 17



6 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Making this vision reality

Priority 1: Ensure children and 
young people in our borough 
are healthy and safe. 

Safeguarding is a top priority if we 

are to ensure our children and young 

people are healthy, safe and protected 

from harm, abuse and neglect. Through 

early intervention, making a healthy 

start and by providing effective support 

for children and families, we will reduce 

the number of children coming into care 

or becoming subject of child protection 

plan and improve outcomes for children 

with disabilities.

Priority 2 : Narrowing the 
gap between those children 
who do well and those who 
need extra support to thrive, 
so the aspirations of every 
Brent child are realised. We 
must also ensure and there 
are sufficient school places to 
meet continuing increase in 
demand. 

We will consider all possible strategies 

and initiatives to increase the supply 

of school places. We will improve the 

educational attainment of all children 

and young people, including looked 

after children, children with special 

educational needs and/or disabilities 

and children from black and ethnic 

minorities. We will focus on closing the 

gap between those who do well and 

those who may need extra support to 

thrive, to enable successful progression 

into adult life and employability. 

Priority 3 : To fully integrate 
services to develop resilient 
families.

BCP is committed to delivering 

integrated services that focus on families 

and are designed to identify need 

early that provide targeted support 

and protection. We shall also continue 

to ensure that universal services are 

in place for all children, young people 

and families. We will help children 

get a healthy start in life and improve 

emotional health and wellbeing, tackle 

child poverty and support children and 

young people to take part in positive 

activities as well as giving parents the 

skills to get back into work. 

6

To enable us to achieve our vision we have 
identified three strategic priorities:

Page 18



7Page 19



8

Working together to achieve the vision 

BCP is committed to providing clear 

strategic direction and making diffi cult 

decisions collectively. There is still much to 

do and the partnership is determined to 

make a positive difference to the lives of 

children and young people in Brent.

During 2010, the coalition Government 

removed the statutory duty for local 

authorities to have children’s trust 

arrangements in place, and also published 

details of health and wellbeing Boards 

in the health white paper ‘Equity and 

Excellence: Liberating the NHS’. We have 

reviewed our partnership arrangements 

in light of these changes, and all agencies 

remain committed to maintaining the 

strong partnership arrangements that 

are in place. We have also reviewed our 

terms of reference for our Children’s 

Partnership Board and strengthened 

further the emphasis on improving 

outcomes and impact. The BCP remains 

one of the fi ve thematic partnerships of 

Brent’s Strategic Partnership – Partners for 

Brent (PfB) and its members work jointly 

with the PfB, particularly to address areas 

of work which also have an impact on the 

outcomes of children and young people. 

This includes working with the Shadow 

Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure 

that public health priorities are met.

This plan focuses on the areas where 

partners can work together to make 

the most difference to children and 

young people.

We have identifi ed the key areas of 

activity across the partnership that will 

help us to deliver improved outcomes. 

These ‘building blocks’ will support BCP 

to work effectively to deliver a vision 

focused on children and families, inter 

agency governance, integrated strategy 

(joint planning and commissioning), 

integrated processes and integrated 

frontline delivery.

National policy context

Environment in which the BCP operates 

has changed dramatically since the 

formation of the coalition Government 

in May 2010 and the change of focus on 

new policy statements around children 

and families. From 31 October 2010, the 

Government:

s฀฀REVOKED฀THE฀REGULATIONS฀UNDERPINNING฀

the children and young people’s 

plan (CYPP) and withdrew statutory 

guidance on children’s trusts

s฀฀REMOVED฀THE฀REQUIREMENT฀ON฀LOCAL฀

authorities to set up children’s trust 

boards and the requirement on those 

boards to prepare and publish a joint 

CYPP.

Although children’s trusts are no 

longer statutory, BCP recognises the 

impact partnership working has had on 

improving outcomes for children and 

young people and is committed to driving 

the strategic direction of children and 

families services in Brent. 

A number of national policy statements 

by the Government highlight the 

importance on early intervention, by 

tackling the root causes of problems early 

on and in a sustainable way, rather than 

just dealing with the symptoms. Funding 

arrangements, particularly the new 

public health funding and the un-ring 

fenced early intervention grant, further 

emphasise this direction.

The Government has commissioned a 

number of reviews in the area of early 

intervention and there is an increasing 

body of evidence of the effectiveness 

of early intervention with children and 

families. This is confi rmed in the reviews 

by Graham Allen MP1, Rt Hon Frank Field 

MP2, Dame Clare Tickell3 and the Munro 

Review of Child Protection .

The Government’s response to the 

Munro Review of Child Protection 

published in July 20114 will see long-

term reform of the child protection 

system to deliver and improve outcomes 

for our most vulnerable children and 

young people. Professor Eileen Munro’s 

review ‘A Child-Centred System’, May 

2011, outlines a radical new approach to 

Page 20



9

improve the quality of child protection 

services in the UK. The review suggests 

signifi cantly reducing central prescription 

and regulation and to develop child 

protection that is more responsive to 

local need, freeing professionals to use 

their expertise to fully assess a child and 

provide the right help. The review also 

underlines the need to improve the 

knowledge and skills of social workers, 

from training through to continuing 

professional development.

The green paper on Special Educational 

Needs and Disability also emphasises the 

importance of early identifi cation and 

support, and providing families with 

confi dence in, and greater control over, 

the services that they use and receive. 

The green paper5 promises to put in 

place a radically different system, giving 

parents more control and transferring 

power to professionals on the front line.

The Government, through the Health and 

Social Care Bill, is introducing a statutory 

duty on local authorities to establish 

health and wellbeing boards to lead on 

improving the strategic coordination 

of commissioning across the NHS, social 

care and related children’s and public 

health services6 . In addition to this, 

public health will transition to local 

government and will have a central role in 

improving health and wellbeing, reducing 

inequalities with ring-fenced public 

health budgets to support the work.

1 Early Intervention: The Next Steps [Graham Allen MP, January 2011]
2 The Foundation Years: preventing poor children becoming poor adults [Frank Field, December 2010]
3 The Early Years: Foundations for life, health and learning [Dame Clare Tickell, March 2011]
4 The Munro Review of Child Protection: Final Report [Professor Eileen Munro, May 2011]
5  Support and Aspiration: A new approach to special educational needs and disability – a consultation, [DfE March 2011]
6 Healthy Lives, Healthy People: Our Strategy for public health in England [November 2011]

Page 21



10 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-201510

What is Brent like?

Brent

s฀฀IS฀THE฀HOME฀OF฀THE฀ICONIC฀7EMBLEY฀

Stadium, Wembley Arena and the 

spectacular Swaminarayan Hindu 

Temple

s฀฀IS฀SERVED฀BY฀SOME฀OF฀THE฀BEST฀TRANSPORT฀

links in London and the area is 

accustomed to the successful staging 

of major events

s฀฀HAS฀A฀YOUNG�฀DYNAMIC฀AND฀GROWING฀

population. Our long history of ethnic 

and cultural diversity has created a 

place that is truly unique and valued by 

those who live and work here.

Brent’s population 

s฀฀�������฀�#ENSUS฀����	฀PEOPLE฀LIVE฀IN฀

Brent. It is one of the most densely 

populated outer London boroughs 

with an average of 72 persons per 

hectare, compared to the outer and 

inner London averages of 39 and 99 

respectively. The child population in 

Brent is 77,500 (Census 2011). 

s฀฀4HERE฀IS฀AN฀INCREASING฀POPULATION฀OF฀

younger children living in Brent – 4,545 

extra school places have been created 

in the last eight years.

s฀฀��฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀THE฀POPULATION฀IS฀AGED฀

20-39 and 23 per cent are 19 or under 

with 16 per cent aged over 60 years.

s฀฀"RENT฀HAS฀ONE฀OF฀THE฀HIGHEST฀

proportions of black and ethnic 

minority residents in London. 

Approximately 71 per cent of the 

population are from an ethnic group  

other than white British. 

Demographics

s฀฀"RENT฀HAS฀HIGH฀LEVELS฀OF฀SOCIAL฀AND฀

economic deprivation in some areas. 

The borough is ranked amongst the 

top 15 per cent most deprived areas in 

the country.

s฀฀&AMILIES฀LIVING฀IN฀DEPRIVED฀AREAS฀ARE฀

characterised by higher levels of long-

term unemployment, low average 

incomes and a reliance on benefits and 

social housing.

s฀฀/VER฀A฀THIRD฀OF฀CHILDREN฀IN฀"RENT฀

currently live in a low-income 

household and a fifth in a single-adult 

household.

s฀฀4HE฀PROPORTION฀OF฀OUR฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀

living in acute deprivation is rising 

with a growing gap in educational 

achievement between children from 

deprived backgrounds and the rising 

borough average.

s฀฀"RENT฀HAS฀THE฀THIRD฀HIGHEST฀AVERAGE฀

household size in the country and 

overcrowding is a significant problem.

s฀฀"RENT�S฀COMMUNITIES฀ARE฀ETHNICALLY฀

diverse. There are established 

communities of Indian, black 

Caribbean and Irish people living 

in Brent, however the proportions 

of children of these backgrounds 

are decreasing in Brent schools. The 

numbers of children from Somali (and 

other black African groups), Eastern 

European, Afghani, Iraqi and Hispanic 

backgrounds are increasing.

s฀฀(EALTH฀INEQUALITIES฀ARE฀ALSO฀GREATER฀

in Brent, with significantly high 

levels of child obesity, particularly 

affecting children living in Harlesden 

and Willesden and children of 

black Caribbean and black African 

backgrounds.

Children in need

s฀฀"RENT฀HAS฀�����฀CHILDREN฀IN฀NEED฀

including 386 (2011) children in care. 

s฀฀4HERE฀WAS฀AN฀INCREASE฀����฀IN฀����฀AND฀

215 in 2010) in the number of children 

subject to a child protection plan, 

mirroring the national trend.

s฀฀"RENT฀HAD฀MORE฀DOMESTIC฀VIOLENCE฀

offences per 1,000 head of population 

(8) in 2010 than the London average 

(7.4) and statistical neighbours (7.7)

s฀฀4HERE฀HAS฀ALSO฀BEEN฀A฀REDUCTION฀IN฀

crime over the last four years with 

significant reductions in gun crime, 

knife crime, robberies and youth 

violence, although they remain at a 

higher rate (per capita) than Brent’s 

statistical neighbours and the London 

average.

s฀฀4EENAGE฀PREGNANCY฀RATES฀HAVE฀

increased to 44 per 1,000 women aged 

15-17; this is above the outer London 

average but in line with Brent’s 

statistical neighbours. 

Going to school in Brent 

s฀฀4HERE฀ARE฀�����฀�����฀PER฀CENT	฀CHILDREN฀

identified as having special educational 

needs (SEN) and another 1,390 (3.2 per 

cent) have a statement of SEN.

s฀฀��฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀CHILDREN฀ATTENDING฀"RENT฀

schools are from ethnic minorities.

s฀฀����฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀OUR฀PRIMARY฀PUPILS฀AND฀

51.9 per cent of secondary pupils speak 

English as an additional language.

s฀฀������฀CHILDREN฀LIVING฀IN฀"RENT฀ATTEND฀A฀

Brent school.

s฀฀�����฀CHILDREN฀WHO฀LIVE฀IN฀OTHER฀

London boroughs also attend Brent 

primary and secondary schools.

Page 22



11A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015 11

Our long history of ethnic 
and cultural diversity has 
created a place that is truly 
unique and valued by those 
who live and work here.

Page 23



12 Page 24



13A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Improvements in the last two years 

This section reviews 
progress against the 
key priorities of the 
Children and Young 
Person’s Plan 2009-11, 
highlighting what has 
improved and where 
we still need to focus.

Children and young people 
remain safe and protected

Achievements in the last two years: 

s฀฀7E฀CARRIED฀OUT฀MORE฀ASSESSMENTS฀FOR฀

children in a timely manner thereby 

getting provision of help in more 

quickly. Brent was ranked second 

amongst our statistical neighbours and 

nationally for this.

s฀฀��฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀CHILDREN฀SUBJECT฀TO฀A฀

child protection plan and looked after 

children had their reviews completed 

within timescales, thus ensuring 

effective and responsive planning. This 

resulted in children not staying subject 

to a child protection plan any longer 

than they had to be.

s฀฀��฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀LOOKED฀AFTER฀CHILDREN฀

participated at their reviews, showing 

that we listen to how these young 

people feel. Children and young 

people will only continue to participate 

if they feel their voice is being heard. 

Clearly these young people did.

s฀฀&EWER฀RE
REFERRALS฀WERE฀MADE฀TO฀

social care. There was a five per cent 

reduction in comparison to previous 

years, which means that more issues are 

being resolved at a child’s first referral.

s฀฀!฀MORE฀STABLE฀WORKFORCE�฀WITH฀��฀PER฀

cent of senior social workers and social 

workers being permanent in social 

care, and we know that workforce 

stability is a factor which contributes 

to overall quality of service provision.

s฀฀4HE฀TIMELINESS฀OF฀NEW฀BIRTH฀VISITS฀

increased, as did the completion 

of safeguarding training and 

recruitment of health visitor staff, thus 

strengthening early identification of 

any potential problems which may 

arise for a family.

s฀฀)MPLEMENTED฀A฀STRENGTHENING฀FAMILIES฀

approach to child protection which is 

more child-focused involving parents 

and stakeholders. The approach 

involves a comprehensive risk 

assessment. It is having a significant 

impact on reducing the number of 

children subject to a child protection 

plan, as well the length of time children 

have been on the child protection 

plan, so we know that issues are being 

resolved and that the child protection 

plan has been effective.

What we still need to focus on:

s฀฀)NCREASING฀THE฀NUMBER฀OF฀CHILDREN฀THAT฀

are either adopted, or placed with a 

prospective adopter, within 12 months 

of the decision being made to place 

them for adoption.

s฀฀0ROVIDING฀MORE฀STABLE฀PLACEMENTS฀FOR฀

our looked after children. 

 

Page 25



14 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Excellent education for all 
children and young people 

Achievements in the last two years:

s฀฀3TANDARDS฀AT฀THE฀END฀OF฀THE฀%ARLY฀

Years Foundation Stage improved 

significantly in 2011, bringing Brent’s 

results to just below the national 

average.

s฀฀4HE฀GAP฀BETWEEN฀THE฀LOWEST฀

performing 20 per cent of children and 

all other children narrowed, bringing 

Brent’s performance close to the 

national average. 

s฀฀!T฀+EY฀3TAGE฀��฀PERFORMANCE฀AT฀LEVEL฀

2+, improved for more children. This 

was in line with the national averages 

for reading, writing and mathematics.

s฀฀!T฀+EY฀3TAGE฀��฀PERFORMANCE฀CONTINUED฀

to be above the national average for 

the percentage of pupils achieving 

five or more A* –C grades at GCSE, 

including English and mathematics, 

continuing the positive, improving 

five-year trend.

s฀฀!T฀+EY฀3TAGE฀��฀PERFORMANCE฀AT฀

level 3 (A level and equivalent 

qualifications) improved significantly 

and performance was well above the 

national average. 

s฀฀4HE฀GAP฀IN฀PERFORMANCE฀BETWEEN฀

pupils who were eligible for free school 

meals and those who weren’t, was 

narrower than the national gap. This 

means that Brent children eligible for 

free school meals made more progress 

than in other parts of the country. 

s฀฀4HE฀MAJORITY฀OF฀SCHOOLS฀IN฀"RENT฀HAVE฀

been judged good or better by Ofsted 

and the number of schools causing 

significant concern has continued to 

reduce.

s฀฀4HE฀TOTAL฀NUMBER฀OF฀"RENT฀RESIDENT฀

pupils excluded from school in and 

out of the borough was at its lowest 

(49) for more than ten years.

s฀฀)N฀����฀THE฀GAP฀BETWEEN฀

achievements of Somali pupils – who 

have historically underachieved –

and all Brent pupils, reduced to ten 

percentage points compared to 21 

percentage points in 2010. 

What we still need to focus on: 

s฀฀฀3CHOOL฀PLACES�฀7E฀MUST฀CONSIDER฀AND฀

explore every possible way of ensuring 

that every child in Brent has an 

available place in a Brent school. 

s฀฀-AINTAINING฀THE฀CLOSE฀FOCUS฀ON฀

primary schools in order to challenge 

and support them in securing an 

outcome of at least ‘good’ in their next 

inspection by Ofsted.

s฀฀#HALLENGING฀AND฀SUPPORTING฀SCHOOLS฀

in narrowing the gaps in attainment 

between specific groups of pupils 

and all other pupils, by improving the 

educational achievement of pupils on 

free school meals.

s฀฀)MPROVING฀THE฀EDUCATIONAL฀

achievements of black Caribbean and 

Somali pupils in particular, and all 

Brent pupils.

Page 26



15A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Achievements in the last two years: 

s฀฀"Y฀3EPTEMBER฀����฀����฀PER฀CENT฀OF฀OUR฀

16 and 17-year-olds had been made 

an offer of a place in learning. This is 

higher than the national average and 

the fourth highest in London.

s฀฀&EWER฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀AGED฀��
��฀WERE฀

not in education, employment and 

training. 

s฀฀-ORE฀��
��฀YEAR฀OLDS฀FROM฀BLACK฀OR฀

minority groups were engaged in 

education, employment or training at 

the end of March 2011. 

s฀฀-ORE฀CHILDREN฀LEAVING฀CARE฀AT฀��฀HAVE฀

been engaged in education, training 

or employment throughout the 

year in 2010/11, with a ten per cent 

improvement on the previous year. 

s฀฀4HERE฀HAVE฀BEEN฀LESS฀lRST฀TIME฀ENTRANTS฀

to the youth justice system in 2010/11, 

with a 24 per cent reduction from the 

previous year.

s฀฀-ORE฀YOUNG฀OFFENDERS฀���฀PER฀CENT	฀

known to the youth offending service 

were engaged in some form of suitable 

education, training or employment, 

representing an increase of two per 

cent from the same period last year. 

What we still need to focus on: 

s฀฀4HE฀NUMBER฀OF฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀�����฀

per cent) with learning difficulties 

who were engaged in education, 

employment or training had decreased 

slightly at end of March 2011.

s฀฀2EDUCING฀RE
OFFENDING฀RATES฀FOR฀YOUNG฀

offenders. It was 46 per cent in 2010-

11, which is much higher than the 

national average.

s฀฀2EDUCING฀THE฀NUMBER฀OF฀THE฀YOUNG฀

people (7.6 per cent in 2010-11) known 

to the youth justice system who 

were sentenced to custody. This is an 

increase on last year’s figure but in line 

with our statistical neighbours.

s฀฀)NCREASE฀THE฀NUMBER฀OF฀TEENAGE฀

mothers engagement in education, 

employment or training, as there has 

been a slight decrease in performance 

in this area.

Access to the very best opportunities in and out of school

Page 27



16 Page 28



17A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Achievements in the last two years:

s฀฀฀)MPLEMENTED฀��฀CHILDREN�S฀CENTRE฀

buildings across five localities, providing 

early education and childcare, 

family support, health services and 

employability services, including 

support for parents to access training.

s฀฀0ARENTING฀SUPPORT฀IN฀CHILDREN�S฀CENTRES฀

is now part of the core offer to families 

and includes a range of universal 

and targeted services. These include 

universal information, advice and 

guidance, drop–in facilities, structured 

evidence-based parenting programmes 

and outreach services and home 

visiting – giving special attention to 

those who need extra help with their 

children. We recognise in Brent that 

good parenting makes a big difference 

to a child’s wellbeing and future 

success. Many parents will need help 

and guidance at some point in their 

parenting experience.

s฀฀"RENT�S฀CHILDREN�S฀CENTRES฀ARE฀NOW฀

organised on a locality basis. 

They provide the full core offer 

of integrated early education and 

childcare, family support, health 

provision (including midwifery, 

breastfeeding and smoking cessation 

support and advice) and parenting, 

employability and training support to 

families with a child under five across 

the borough. 

s฀฀#HILDREN�S฀CENTRES฀NOW฀ALSO฀HELP฀

families to have positive opportunities 

to contribute and strengthen 

community relationships. This 

includes supporting volunteering, 

enabling parents to contribute to the 

governance of children’s centres and 

hosting community events. 

s฀฀!฀TOTAL฀OF฀��฀FAMILIES฀PARTICIPATED฀IN฀

the MEND programme (combating 

childhood obesity) in 2010-2011, 

exceeding the annual target of 84. 

s฀฀)N฀�������฀MORE฀MOTHERS฀�SIX฀PER฀CENT	฀

initiated breastfeeding compared to 

the previous year.

s฀฀4HERE฀WAS฀IMPROVEMENT฀IN฀THE฀

prevalence of breastfeeding at six-

eight weeks from birth. 

s฀฀,ESS฀NEW฀MOTHERS฀ARE฀SMOKING฀DURING฀

pregnancy. 

s฀฀4HERE฀WAS฀A฀DECREASE฀IN฀THE฀NUMBER฀

of households living in temporary 

accommodation, during 2010/11  

(33 per cent) . 

s฀฀4HERE฀HAS฀BEEN฀AN฀INCREASE฀IN฀THE฀

numbers of women who have seen a 

midwife or a maternity professional 

for health and social care assessment 

of needs, risks and choices by 12 weeks 

of pregnancy.

s฀฀4HERE฀HAS฀BEEN฀IMPROVEMENT฀IN฀THE฀

percentage uptake of immunisations 

for children at ages one, two and five. 

What we still need to focus on:

s฀฀&URTHER฀IMPROVING฀THE฀PERCENTAGE฀

uptake of immunisations for children 

aged two and five. 

s฀฀%NCOURAGING฀PEOPLE฀TO฀TAKE฀MORE฀

exercise. Over half our population is 

not taking part in any form of physical 

exercise.

s฀฀%NCOURAGING฀FAMILIES฀TO฀TAKE
UP฀

opportunities for improving their 

economic wellbeing (including Job 

Centre Plus advisors working from 

children’s centres, provision of ESOL 

classes, Citizens Advice Bureau services 

encouraging take-up of entitlements, 

support to address housing needs and 

adult education programmes.) 

Developing strong families to improve  
outcomes for children

We recognise in 
Brent that good 
parenting makes 
a big difference to 
a child’s wellbeing 
and future success

Page 29



18 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Outcomes for children, young people and families 

By taking radical  
action against our 
three priority areas 
identified in PCFB 
described below:

Priority 1: Ensure children and 
young people in our borough 
are healthy and safe. 

Priority 2: Narrowing the gap 
between those children who 
do well and those who need 
extra support to thrive, so 
the aspirations of every Brent 
child are realised. We must 
also ensure there are sufficient 
school places to meet 
continuing increase in demand. 

Priority 3: To fully integrate 
services to develop resilient 
families. 

There will be significant impact on some 

of our most challenging inequalities. 

By focusing on a smaller number of key 

priorities it will help us focus our work 

for greater impact. Our priorities also fit 

well with other important issues set out 

in the Community Plan, the Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy and contribute to 

delivering Brent’s corporate vision, Our 

Future 2012-2014:

s฀฀"RENT฀WILL฀BE฀A฀THRIVING�฀VIBRANT฀

place, where our diverse community 

lives in an environment that is safe, 

sustainable and well maintained.

s฀฀!LL฀OUR฀SERVICES฀WILL฀ENABLE฀LOCAL฀

people to fulfil their potential and 

improve their quality of life. Public 

resources will be used creatively and 

wisely to produce lasting benefits for 

our residents and the borough.

s฀฀/UR฀COMMITMENT฀TO฀REDUCING฀POVERTY�฀

redressing inequality and preventing 

exclusion will be at the heart of all 

our actions.

This plan sets out the three priorities 

and the nine outcomes agreed by BCP 

for 2012-15. It also includes the actions 

we will take to deliver these outcomes 

and identifies how we will know if 

we’ve been successful. Action plans 

and outcomes will be reviewed on an 

annual basis. 

Priority 1: Ensure children and 
young people in our borough 
are healthy and safe. 

Safeguarding is a top priority and we 

need to ensure our children and young 

people are healthy, safe and protected 

from harm, abuse and neglect. Through 

early intervention, making a healthy 

start and by providing effective support 

for children and families, we will reduce 

the number of children coming into care, 

children becoming subject of a child 

protection plan and improve outcomes 

for children with disabilities. 

Outcome 1: Children and young people 

in our borough are safe and protected 

from harm and neglect. 

The majority of children and young 

people in Brent are safe, however 

Brent has 2,100 children in need, 

including 386 (2011) children in care 

and 258(2011) children subject of a child 

protection plan. As well as this, Brent 

had more domestic violence offences 

than the London average and statistical 

neighbours. Children and young people 

need to grow up in safe homes with 

people who care for them if they are to 

enjoy their childhood and grow up to be 

happy, healthy adults. Key issues in Brent 

that require continued focus include: 

domestic violence and the impact this 

has on the safety and wellbeing of 

children within those families; substance 

misuse and the impact this has on the 

wellbeing of unborn children; the need 

for more effective joint working and 

early intervention. 

Outcome 2: Young people enjoy a safe 

environment, free of crime and anti 

social behaviour both inside and out of 

school.

The last Tell Us survey showed that 

experiences of bullying had become less 

but the proportion of young people 

in school year ten who had taken part 

in any group activity led by an adult 

outside school lessons (such as sports, 

arts, or a youth group) had gone 

down. The re-offending rates of young 

offenders increased to 46 per cent (2010-

11), which is higher than the national 

average. There has been an increase in 

young people within the youth justice 

Page 30



19A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

system receiving a conviction in court 

who are sentenced to custody. A safe 

environment free from bullying and a 

climate of good behaviour to support 

learning both in, and out of, school is 

important. Children and young people 

need to be equipped with the necessary 

tools and education to enable them 

to remain safe online. The partnership 

approach to youth crime and anti social 

behaviour is working, but there is more 

to do to reduce it through targeted 

intervention, for example we provide 

integrated support to young people 

especially around guns and knives.

Outcome 3: Babies, children, young 

people and families make a healthy 

start and make healthy choices. 

Childhood obesity is a particular 

cause for concern and represents a 

future burden of chronic ill health and 

premature death. The prevalence of 

type 2 diabetes in Brent, is also high 

compared to the national average. 

Harlesden, Willesden and Wembley have 

more than 20 per cent of children who 

are obese. Tooth decay is also highly 

prevalent in Brent. The percentage 

of decayed teeth in five-year-olds is 

15 per cent higher than the national 

average. Brent had the seventh highest 

percentage of low birth weight babies 

of all the London boroughs. Using 

children’s centres as a multidisciplinary 

model, we have made strong progress 

in Brent and implemented 17 children’s 

centre buildings which are organised 

on a locality basis. These deliver and 

promote programmes which support 

families, as well as providing the full 

core offer of integrated early education 

and childcare, health provision 

(including midwifery, breastfeeding 

and smoking cessation support, 

healthy eating and advice) parenting, 

employability and training support to 

families with a child under five across 

the borough. We need to continue to 

further improve accessibility to these 

services and to continue to have a strong 

focus on the health of our looked after 

children. We will do this by ensuring that 

all our looked after young people have 

a health assessment when they should 

so that any problems or issues they may 

face can by addressed and prevented 

from escalating.

We do know that looked after children 

can be particularly vulnerable, with an 

estimated 45 per cent aged between 

five and 17 years nationally having 

mental health problems. It is estimated 

that young people involved in the 

criminal justice system are also more 

likely to have mental health needs. We 

have a Child and Adolescent Mental 

Health Service (CAMHS) in place, but 

want to continue to develop earlier 

intervention and support for children 

and young people in this area. We also 

need to continue to develop our services 

to meet the needs of those groups we 

know are particularly vulnerable to 

emotional and mental health difficulties.

Priority 2 : Closing the gap 
between those children who 
do well and those who need 
extra support to thrive, so 
the aspirations of every Brent 
child are realised. We must 
also ensure there are sufficient 
school places to meet 
continuing increase in demand. 

It is a priority to address the increasing 

demand in the borough for school 

places. We will consider all possible 

strategies and initiatives to increase the 

supply of school places. Improving the 

educational attainment of all children 

and young people, including looked 

after children, children with special 

educational needs and/or disabilities 

(SEND) and children from black and 

ethnic minorities, by focusing on 

reducing inequality and closing the gap 

between those who do well and those 

who may need some extra support to 

thrive, to enable successful progression 

into adult life and employability

Outcome 4: Children and young people 

enjoy their education and achieve the 

best results they can. 

We will raise educational standards at 

all key stages and close attainment gaps 

between groups and ensure sufficient 

school places for every Brent child.

Outcome 5: Enable vulnerable children 

and young people (including looked 

after children, those with SEN or a 

disability) to thrive and realise their 

aspiration. 

Children and young people who are 

looked after or have disabilities have 

less opportunity to participate and 

there should be focus on developing 

participation in life-long learning. 

Improving the life chances of young 

people is a corporate objective and 

priority for Brent. A long-term priority 

is addressing the participation of 

young people in both training and 

the labour market. Brent Council’s 

Not in Education, Employment or 

Training (NEET) Strategy highlights our 

approach to tackling the NEET issue in 

Brent, in supporting young people into 

education, employment and training. 

Outcome 6: Young people have the 

skills they need to achieve economic 

wellbeing in adulthood.

In common with the rest of the 

country, the claimant count in Brent 

increased rapidly as a result of the 

Page 31



20 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

recession, particularly amongst 

young people. 2,045 young people 

aged 18-24 were signing on for job 

seekers allowance in January 2012, 

compared to 1,700 in January 2011, 

up by 345 in one year. It is important 

that young people can compete in a 

difficult labour market and have the 

confidence to succeed. We know that 

some young people are less likely 

to be in education or training than 

others, so we need to make sure they 

get the support they need. English 

language, poor health, insufficient 

skills and childcare costs are the 

biggest barriers to employment. We 

are making sure that young people 

with learning difficulties/disabilities 

are supported in their transitions to 

further education, but we need to 

continue to focus on this.

Priority 3 : To fully integrate 
services to develop resilient 
families.

Brent’s partnership makes a 

commitment to deliver integrated 

services that are designed to identify 

need early and provide targeted support 

and protection when families need extra 

help. In addition to this, we need to 

make sure that universal services are in 

place for all children, young people and 

families. To help children get a healthy 

start in life and improve emotional 

health and wellbeing, to tackle child 

poverty and support children and young 

people to take part in positive activities 

as well as up skilling parents to get back 

into work. 

Outcome 7: Children and young people 

achieve their full potential 

We welcome Graham Allen and Frank 

Field’s recommendations that people, 

especially parents, health professionals 

and newly pregnant women should be 

aware of the importance of developing 

social and emotional capability in the 

first years of life, and understand the 

best ways of encouraging good outcomes 

for their children. We will focus on 

foundation years to reduce gaps in school 

readiness at age five between children 

from different social and economic 

backgrounds. The Brent Parenting 

Strategy explicitly states that additional 

support will be given to ‘parents, carers 

and families to ensure all children and 

young people are able to reach their full 

potential and to offer early preventative 

support to improve outcomes for the 

most vulnerable.’ In order for children 

and young people to get the best start in 

life, we need to ensure universal settings 

in early years, nursery, primary and 

secondary schools are rated as ‘good’ or 

‘outstanding’ by Ofsted. 

Outcome 8: Children, young people  

and families live free from poverty. 

Child poverty can arise from a 

combination of issues – parents on low 

incomes, parental financial capability 

and debt, unemployment and barriers 

to employment, poor overcrowded 

housing, health inequalities and 

troubled families. We need to work 

in partnership with all agencies to 

alleviate the impact of child poverty by 

appropriate targeting of resources.

Our ultimate goal is to ensure that all 

children have the opportunity to grow 

and thrive regardless of socio-economic 

background. We know, for example, 

that children from disadvantaged 

backgrounds have poorer health, and 

lower educational achievement. Children 

living in temporary accommodation with 

high levels of unemployment have worse 

health, wellbeing and life chances. We 

also know that poverty rates are highest 

for workless families. We will focus and 

concentrate on families who are both in 

and out of work who are experiencing 

poverty and those that will be affected 

by benefit cuts and welfare reforms. 

Outcome 9: Developing strong families 

to improve outcomes for children.

Most families are safe, healthy and 

resilient, however we need to improve 

the outcomes for children and young 

people growing up in families facing 

multiple problems. Children growing 

up in families facing multiple problems 

are more likely to experience poor 

outcomes. Around two per cent of 

families (around 140,000 families) in 

Britain are subject to multiple problems 

such as:

s฀฀NO฀PARENT฀IN฀THE฀FAMILY฀IN฀WORK

s฀฀FAMILY฀LIVES฀IN฀POOR
QUALITY฀OR฀

overcrowded housing

s฀฀NO฀PARENT฀HAS฀ANY฀QUALIlCATIONS

s฀฀MENTAL฀HEALTH฀PROBLEMS

s฀฀AT฀LEAST฀ONE฀PARENT฀HAS฀A฀LONG
STANDING฀

limiting illness, disability or infirmity

s฀฀FAMILY฀HAS฀LOW฀INCOME฀�BELOW฀��฀

per cent of the average income) 

and cannot afford certain food and 

clothing. 

Families experiencing five or more of 

the above points can find it difficult to 

overcome the issues they face without 

some kind of intervention or support. 

Over the next year Brent will identify 

the families with complex needs and 

work closely cross departmentally and 

with key partners to offer support 

where needed. This offers the potential 

of targeting support to families in ways 

that build their resilience, life chances 

and independence in advance of 

problems escalating. This is consistent 

with Brent’s commitment to more 

effectively intervene with families at risk 

at an earlier stage and so prevent them 

requiring more specialist and costly 

services in the future.

Page 32



21A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Ensure children 
and young people 
in our borough are 
healthy and safe. 

21Page 33



22 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-201522 Page 34



23A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

The process of 
developing this plan 
and identifying key 
priorities and  
outcomes has  
involved:

s฀฀2EVIEWING฀THE฀PREVIOUS฀PRIORITIES฀SET฀

out in the 2009-11 plan, updating 

where we have done well and looking 

at the areas on which we still need to 

focus. We have reviewed the profile 

of children and families in Brent 

along with the Joint Strategic Needs 

Analysis and the Child Poverty Needs 

Assessment, as well as looking at 

what has improved in the borough 

and emerging issues.

s฀฀#ONSULTATION฀AND฀PARTICIPATION฀

activities with children, young people, 

parents/carers, schools and residents, 

children and young people with 

learning difficulties and/or disabilities 

and looked after children. We have 

also drawn on findings from the Tell 

Us annual survey, which gets children 

and young people’s views on a wide 

range of issues. 

s฀฀2EVIEWING฀PRIORITIES฀FROM฀THE฀VARIOUS฀

Brent partnership strategies.

How the outcomes have been decided 

Page 35



24 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

The challenges we face

There are improvements 
in many areas in terms 
of the priorities which 
were set out in the 
2009-11 plan, but 
there are still areas for 
improvement which the 
partnership needs to 
focus on.

s฀฀4HE฀/FSTED฀3AFEGUARDING฀AND฀

Looked After Children Inspection 

Report, published in November 2011, 

stated that the overall effectiveness 

of the council and its partners in 

safeguarding children and young 

people has improved in terms of 

service provision. But there are 

some major areas of improvement 

highlighted in the inspection reports, 

which are contained in our post 

inspection action plan. 

s฀฀)N฀ADDITION฀TO฀THIS�฀A฀KEY฀FOCUS฀OF฀

the Safeguarding and Care Planning 

Service is to actively seek the views 

of children, young people and 

their parents and to incorporate 

them into service development and 

improvement. 

s฀฀4HERE฀ARE฀ISSUES฀TO฀BE฀ADDRESSED฀IN฀

relation to the changing population of 

Brent, in particular the steady increase 

in 0 to 19-year-olds. This will have an 

impact on services for children and 

young people in the borough. As in 

other London boroughs, an increasing 

birth rate is putting pressure on 

places in pre-school settings, schools, 

and other support services. The 

local authority has a duty to ensure 

there are sufficient school places and 

that there is a coherent strategy in 

place for dealing with the additional 

demand for both primary and 

secondary school places. This will 

require strong collaborative working 

between the local authority, schools, 

parents and local communities. 

Services are commissioned by the council 

and its partners, which contribute to 

improving outcomes for children and 

young people aged 0-18 (and in some 

instances up to age 25), as well as their 

parents and primary carers. Services 

cover universal and specialist needs 

across the statutory, voluntary and 

independent sectors. More effective 

and efficient commissioning of services, 

based on need, is therefore a key 

priority and One Council projects 

centred on the reorganisation within 

the special educational needs services 

are targeted to address these areas. 

In addition to this, the commissioning 

of placements is improving, with 

efficiencies being achieved through 

more effective contracting and 

collaboration with neighbouring 

authorities through the West London 

Alliance. The number of looked after 

children placed within the borough is 

increasing, and the number of approved 

Brent foster carers has grown in-line 

with targets. But further work is still 

required to ensure that a sufficient 

range of placements is available within a 

reasonable distance of Brent.

Page 36



25A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Addressing the challenges:

The public sector faces an unprecedented 

reduction in the level of Government 

funding for local services over the next 

four years. With demand for many 

services increasing, and the population 

in urban areas such as Brent expanding, 

we will be faced with some hard choices. 

It is now that we need to be most 

innovative, ambitious and creative to 

turn this challenge into an opportunity 

to reinvent how we deliver public 

services in the future. In Brent we need 

to make sure that universal services are 

in place for all children, young people 

and their families, to prevent problems 

from escalating. This can be achieved 

by ensuring that our services focus on 

priorities such as helping children to 

get a healthy start in life, improving 

emotional health and wellbeing, 

tackling child poverty and supporting 

children and young people to take part 

in positive activities.

Our One Council programme has been 

carefully designed to target reductions 

in the operating costs of the council so 

that we can deliver efficiency savings 

while minimising the impact on front-

line services. 

Within this programme there are 

key projects identified to address 

fundamental change in our Children’s 

Social Care, Achievement and Inclusion 

and Partnership projects around 

prevention. Our projects will enable 

us to provide better services, increase 

our performance and reduce costs. 

By implementing our One Council 

programme we will be better placed to 

protect the vital children and families 

services that many people depend on.

In an increasingly challenging financial 

climate, it is particularly important to 

make sure we are using our resources 

effectively across the partnership 

to achieve the best outcome for our 

children and families. As part of our 

approach to efficiency, we will work 

with our service users and all partners, 

to identify how we can collectively make 

best use of all public finance in Brent. 

Public health

Changes at a local level will transfer 

responsibility for public health to 

local authorities. This will be exercised 

through local health and wellbeing 

boards. Public health responsibilities are 

to be funded by a ring-fenced budget, 

to be allocated based on relative health 

inequalities and deprivation. Shadow 

arrangements will be put in place from 

April 2012, with full responsibilities being 

formally handed over in April 2013.

Changes within health commissioning.

Changes from Primary Care Trust (PCT) 

commissioning to clinical commissioning 

groups (CCG) means that from April 

2012 groups of GPs will be responsible 

for designing local health services 

in England. They will do this by 

commissioning or buying health and 

care services including: 

s฀฀ELECTIVE฀HOSPITAL฀CARE฀

s฀฀REHABILITATION฀CARE฀

s฀฀URGENT฀AND฀EMERGENCY฀CARE฀

s฀฀MOST฀COMMUNITY฀HEALTH฀SERVICES฀

s฀฀MENTAL฀HEALTH฀AND฀LEARNING฀DISABILITY฀

services.

This is part of the Government’s 

desire to create a clinically driven 

commissioning system that is more 

sensitive to the needs of patients.

Healthy Child Programme 

The Healthy Child7 Programme (HCP) 

(Nov 2009, revised 2010), sets out 

the recommended framework of 

universal and progressive services 

needed to promote optimal health and 

development for early life stages and 

family wellbeing. The HCP identifies 

families in need of additional support 

and children who are at risk of poor 

outcomes. It also outlines the roles and 

responsibilities of commissioners, health, 

education, local authority and other 

partners to encourage the development 

of high-quality services. The 

Government consequently published the 

Health Visitors Implementation Plan: A 

Call to Action (February 2011) setting 

out the Government’s ambitious new 

plans to expand and rejuvenate the 

health visiting service. In December 2011, 

A Call to Action – One Year On, Progress 

Report was published highlighting 

progress in key areas of the programme. 

The health visiting service and health 

visiting workforce establishment has 

developed over time in response to 

local needs, additional investments and 

different models of service delivery. NHS 

Brent commissions health visiting services 

from Ealing Integrated care Organisation 

(ICO), in order to deliver the 0-5 HCP 

and safeguarding services. Despite the 

additional nurses in training it remains 

difficult to recruit and retain qualified 

health visitors, particularly in London.

Page 37



26 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Children with Special 
Educational Needs (Phase 2)  
– One Council project 

Brent’s population of school age 

children is projected to rise by 12.9 

per cent by 2020. This will significantly 

affect the demand for SEN provision 

in mainstream and special schools. 

The incidence of children and young 

people with autism has risen sharply. 

In 2006,149 children were identified 

as being on the autistic spectrum. By 

2010, this had risen to 273. More young 

children with multiple and complex 

special educational needs are being 

identified. 

The implication of this rise in demand 

is that there are currently insufficient 

numbers of specialist places in Brent 

schools. Just over 250 children are 

placed in out-of-borough special 

schools. Current planning assumptions 

are that Brent will need to increase 

capacity for specialist placements, 

either in special schools or additionally 

resourced mainstream schools by at least 

30 per cent over the next ten years, in 

order to meet increasing demands and 

reduce out-of-borough non-maintained 

placements and associated costs. The 

proposed aim of the One Council project 

is to:

s฀฀INCREASE฀IN
BOROUGH฀3%.฀PROVISION฀

for children with high level needs by 

approximately 50 places within the 

project period (Sept 2013). Brent’s 

Children and Families department has 

a goal to create 200 additional SEN 

places by 2020.

s฀฀REDUCE฀EXPENDITURE฀ON฀OUT
OF
BOROUGH฀

placements and associated transport 

costs.

s฀฀ENSURE฀HIGH
QUALITY�฀COST
EFFECTIVE฀

local provision and improve on the 

good outcomes already achieved by 

children with SEN in Brent.

s฀฀INCREASE฀INCLUSION฀OF฀CHILDREN฀WITH฀

high level SEN into mainstream schools 

through expansion of specialist 

mainstream provision and co-location, 

where possible, of special schools and 

mainstream schools.

s฀฀IMPROVE฀THE฀COMMISSIONING฀OF฀ALL฀OUT


of-borough school placements.

Working With Families  
– One Council projects 

Brent Council, with its partner agencies, 

is seeking to improve the lives of some 

of the borough’s most vulnerable 

families through an integrated whole 

systems approach to early intervention. 

The approach will be family focused, 

draw on appropriate skills and 

experience from across the council and 

will require effective collaboration with 

a range of key partner agencies.

The challenge for Brent is to establish a 

robust blueprint for early intervention 

services that is tailored to local needs 

and circumstances while, at the same 

time, ensuring that Brent can obtain 

the benefits of responding pro-actively 

to central Government initiatives. The 

council has already begun to meet this 

challenge in the way it is planning to 

deliver services to families with young 

children through the Payment by 

Results (PbR) children’s centre pilot. 

The next step is to develop robust early 

intervention strategies for vulnerable 

families with children across all age 

groups.

 

To do this, Brent with its partners 

intends to establish a suite of projects 

that will implement an effective 

working with families strategy. The core 

principles that underpin this strategy, 

is to support families where there are 

children and young people in need, in 

order for them to enjoy a good quality 

of life and develop as confidently and 

responsibly as possible by:

s฀฀HELPING฀TO฀IMPROVE฀THE฀EDUCATIONAL฀

outcomes of children in families 

in need with a particular focus on 

improving school attendance

s฀฀PROMOTING฀THE฀POSITIVE฀WELLBEING฀OF฀

families including physical health, 

emotional wellbeing and mental 

health while recognising being in long 

term employment can have a positive 

impact on all of these factors

s฀฀ACTING฀AS฀AN฀ADVOCATE฀FOR฀FAMILIES฀

rights and their inclusion and active 

involvement in their communities

s฀฀FOCUSING฀PARTICULAR฀SUPPORT฀ON฀THOSE฀

families where the children’s or young 

people‘s life chances are the poorest 

so that they can grow up in supportive 

and stimulating home environments. 

Page 38



27A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

The high level project approach that will 

be taken in order to deliver the strategy 

and improve the lives of the borough’s 

most vulnerable families is broken down 

into four key projects :

Multi-Agency  
Front Door project

This project will implement 

arrangements to create a ‘multi-agency 

front door’ arrangement for Brent. 

This will enable robust identification 

and assessment of vulnerable families 

in the borough to ensure that they 

receive the services they require. Also 

included as part of this project, will be 

to explore how the common assessment 

framework (CAF) process can be used to 

identify vulnerable families.

Troubled Families – mapping  

of vulnerable families

A vulnerable families mapping and 

identification pilot has been set up. 

The Early Years Integrated Service 

(EYIS) is leading a multi-agency pilot 

that will develop criteria to assist in 

identifying families at greater risk of 

poor outcomes. This leverages the 

experience of nine local authorities 

in England and Wales and is part of 

Brent’s approach to piloting the PbR 

initiative within children’s centres. This 

tests innovative partnership working 

and the integration of a renewed 

common assessment that will identify 

families who will benefit from early 

intervention. In several local authorities, 

evidence-based criteria have been used 

to apply thresholds for automatic access 

to early intervention services. This shows 

that children growing up in families 

facing multiple problems are more likely 

to experience poor outcomes. 

The Early Help  
(Early Years) project 

This project will be the completion and 

extension of the work that is already in 

place as part of the PbR children’s centre 

pilot (described below), to provide early 

help to families with children aged 

between 0 and ten years. The project 

will establish a team of key workers to 

provide support to families with young 

children, to reduce the likelihood of 

them requiring additional services at a 

later stage.

Payment by Results pilot (PbR) 

Payment by results (PbR) is part of the 

Government’s approach to developing 

open public services which devolves 

responsibility to the lowest level to 

meet local needs, are transparent and 

accountable and achieve value for 

money. In Brent this is being delivered 

through children’s centres with the 

objective of reducing inequalities in 

child development, school readiness, 

health and life chances, and to improve 

parenting aspiration and skills. Brent is 

a pilot authority in this trial, the results 

of which will enable the Government 

to make a decision about the potential 

rollout of a national scheme. The trial 

offers an opportunity to find out what 

works for these families. Brent and 

other pilot authorities are currently 

working with the Government to 

identify the trial measures at local 

level in collaboration with our health 

partners.  

The Early Help  
(Adolescents) project 

A new project, to be established, that 

will focus solely on providing targeted 

and effective services to families with 

children aged 11-16 plus to meet their 

needs and prevent further escalation. 

The project will recruit and establish 

key worker teams to deal with 

challenging teenage behaviour and 

link in closely with the Early Help (Early 

Years) project to ensure a smooth 

transition where necessary.

Edge of Care project

This project to implement a robust 

‘edge of care’ service for families with 

children at all ages, at stage 4 level of 

need. The approach will be to divert 

children from the care system and 

reduce reliance on statutory services. 

This project is intended to reduce 

pressure on the locality teams and 

reduce the placement budget.

Page 39



28 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Fundamental Review of 
Services to Young People  
– One Council project 

The project focuses on how we 

transform youth services and develop 

new approaches to deliver improved 

and positive outcomes for young 

people, including statutory youth 

provision. Its purpose is to reduce 

the number of young people that 

are not in education, employment or 

training (NEET) as well involving local 

engagement in the commissioning and 

delivery of services and developing 

alternative funding approaches to 

maintain service in times of financial 

challenge. The project is currently 

in a start-up phase and is looking to 

analyse the both the current and future 

needs of young people and the future 

needs of young people in Brent. It will 

also consider the new Government 

guidance on duty of youth provision. 

Transition to Adult Life  
– One Council project

The Transitions to Adult Life One 

Council project is set to improve the 

transition of children with disabilities 

into adult services. The purpose of this 

project is to provide better transitional 

care for children with disabilities. In 

addition to this, put in place a better 

system to support the families of 

children with disabilities. The 0-13 

Children with Disabilities project 

originated as a separate work stream 

within the Transitions One Council 

project. 

 
 

0-13 Children with Disabilities 
One Council project

This project will improve services 

for children with disabilities aged 

between 0-13 and their families. It 

runs in parallel with the work of the 

One Council Transitions into Adult 

Life project. The 0-13 project will 

deliver similar improvements in the 

effectiveness and efficiency of service 

delivery for children in the younger age 

group, and ensure a smooth handover 

to the transitions team at age 14 for all 

relevant children.

Enhanced partnership dialogue to best 

meet the needs of children and their 

families will also be a feature of this 

project. 

Domestic Violence:  
Violence Against Women  
and Girls project

This forms one work stream of the 

Partners for Brent agenda and has 

been set up to address a raft of new 

legislation impacting on this area. The 

focus of the work is to prevent violence 

from happening by challenging the 

attitudes and behaviours that foster 

it. Where possible, there will be early 

intervention and, where violence does 

occur, adequate partnership support 

to obtain the best outcome for victims 

and their families. Violence Against 

Women and Girls includes, but is not 

limited to, female genital mutilation, 

prostitution, human trafficking, 

stalking, sexual violence, forced 

marriage, honour-based violence and 

domestic homicide reviews. 

7  Department of health (2009, revised 2010). Healthy Child Programme,(HCP) pregnancy and 
the first five years of life http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/
PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_107563 

Page 40



29

it is particularly important to 
make sure we are using our 
resources effectively across 
the partnership to achieve the 
best outcome for our children 
and families

Page 41



Priority 1: 
Ensure children and young 
people in our borough are 

healthy and safe

Priority 2: 
Narrowing the gap and raise attainment 

and realise aspiration for every Brent child

Outcome 1: 
Ensure children and young  
people in our borough are  
safe and protected from  

harm and neglect

Improve and 
strengthen 

multi-agency 
practice to 

protect children 
from harm and 

neglect

Manage risk 
safely so that 

children can be 
kept within the 
family and free 
from abuse and 

neglect

Ensure that a skilled  
workforce exists – prioritise 

recruitment, retention, 
reflective supervision, support 
& development opportunities 

for social workers

Focussed youth work and support 
specifically around the issues of guns, 
gangs and knives in the areas of the 

highest need and deprivation

Prevention of crime, re-offending  
and anti-social behaviour through 
targeted intervention, education  

and resources

Deliver and promote youth work 
programmes providing a range of 

opportunities and support for young 
people and to make healthy life choices

Use of Brent’s children’s centres as a 
multidisciplinary model to deliver the  
Healthy Child programme which will  
provide community based services

Develop health and wellbeing 
strategy for children and young 
people with focus on: reducing 

obesity, increasing physical 
activity, promoting a healthy and 

balanced diet and emotional 
wellbeing by providing better 
access to services in schools 

and children’s centres

Continue to  
challenge and support 
schools in narrowing 

the gaps in attainment 
between groups

Address the 
increasing demand 
for school places 

due to high levels of 
migration

Strengthen capacity to 
support children with 
SEN in mainstream 

schools and develop 
existing special school 
provision to support a 
wider range of needs

Development of 
“smarter” commisioning 
through the west London 

Alliance (WLA) SEN 
Project to reduce the 

costs of out of borough 
placements

Improve post 16 
education to lower 

youth and adult 
unemployment and 
reduce deprivation 

and poverty

Increase the 
number of 

16-19 year olds 
in employment, 

education, 
training and 

apprenticeships

Support children  
and young people  
to participate in 

positive activities and 
engage with their 

communities

Improve outcomes for the most 
vunerable by increasing capacity 

of universal services for early 
indentification and provision of 

preventative support

Work effectively with the 
voluntary sector to reach all 
sections of the community

By focussing on our most deprived 
neighbourhoods and families 

affected by housing benefit, we 
will help unemployed people into 

sustainable employment

Indentify troubled families and 
offer targeted support from 
children’s centres through a 

range of parenting programmes 
and support services

Develop strong and 
resilient families, and 
support families at 

risk of being in crisis

Support families to live in  
suitable housing

Outcome 2: 
Ensure young people can  
enjoy a safe environment,  

free of crime and anti social 
behaviour both inside and  

out of school

Outcome 3: 
Babies, children, young 

people and families make 
a healthy start, make 

healthy choices and are 
emotionally and  
mentally healthy

Outcome 4: 
Children and young people 
enjoy their education and 
achieve the best results  

they can

Outcome 5: 
Enable vulnerable  
children and young  

people including LAC, SEN 
and disability to thrive and 

realise their aspiration

Outcome 6: 
Young people have the 

skills they need to achieve 
economic wellbeing in 

adulthood

Outcome 7: 
Children and young 
people achieve their 

full potential

Outcome 8: 
Children, young people 

and families live free 
from poverty

Outcome 9: 
Developing strong families  

to improve outcomes  
for children

Priority 3: 
Improve support and 

fully integrate services for 
children, young people  

and families

30 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Diagrammatic representation of the key priorities,  
outcomes and related actions for the Plan for  
Children and Families in Brent 2012 -15

Page 42



31A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

PCFB Action Plan

Brent Children’s 
Partnership has a  
robust action plan.

The actions relating to each outcome 

are identified in the plan PCFB action 

plan below and provide the framework 

for ensuring that progress is made. 

The actions relate to a performance 

management framework that is 

based on a number of national 

performance indicators, together with 

locally developed indicators and key 

milestones, for completion of actions. 

This includes the measures relating to 

children’s services that are included in 

Brent’s Performance Improvement Plan 

and in Brent NHS agreement. Over the 

next three years, this will be used to 

support delivery of the outcomes and 

actions identified in this plan and will be 

reviewed at Brent Partnership meetings.

Priority 1: Ensure children and young people in our borough are healthy and safe.

Outcome Action – What are we going to do? Timescale Lead, lead department 
and partners

Link to other 
strategies/plans/
projects

1.  Children and 
families in our 
borough are safe 
and protected from 
harm and neglect

s฀฀%NSURE฀THAT฀A฀SKILLED฀WORKFORCE฀EXISTS฀n฀
prioritise recruitment, retention, reflective 
supervision, support and development 
opportunities for social workers

2012-2015 Children’s Social Care Post Inspection 
plan

s฀฀-ANAGE฀RISK฀SAFELY฀SO฀THAT฀CHILDREN฀CAN฀
be kept within the family and free from 
abuse and neglect

2012-2013 Head of  
Safeguarding

LSCB Business Plan

s฀฀)MPROVE฀AND฀STRENGTHEN฀MULTI
AGENCY฀
practice to protect children from harm 
and neglect

2012-2014 Head of  
Safeguarding

LSCB Business Plan

2.  Young people enjoy 
a safe environment, 
free of crime and 
anti social behaviour 
both inside and 
outside of school

s฀฀&OCUSED฀YOUTH฀WORK฀AND฀SUPPORT฀
specifically around issues of guns, gangs 
and knives in the areas of the highest 
need and deprivation.

2013 Youth and Connexions NEET partnership 
Strategy, YOS 
Plan; Crime 
Prevention 
Strategy

s฀฀0REVENTION฀OF฀CRIME�฀RE
OFFENDING฀AND฀
anti-social behaviour through targeted 
intervention, education and resources.

2012-2014 Youth and Connexions 
and YOS

NEET partnership 

strategy, YOS Plan

3.  Babies, children, 
young people and 
families make a 
healthy start ,make 
healthy choices and 
are emotionally and 
mentally healthy

s฀฀$ELIVER฀AND฀PROMOTE฀YOUTH฀WORK฀
programmes provide a range of 
opportunities and support for young 
people to make healthy life choices.

2012-2014 Youth and Connexions Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy, Youth 
and Connexions

s฀฀5SE฀OF฀"RENT�S฀CHILDREN�S฀CENTRES฀AS฀A฀
multidisciplinary model to deliver the 
Healthy Child Programme will which 
provide community based services.

2012-2014 Early help and 
education

Parenting 
Strategy, Health 
and Wellbeing 
Strategy

s฀฀$EVELOP฀A฀HEALTH฀AND฀WELLBEING฀STRATEGY฀
for children and young people with a 
focus on: reducing obesity, increasing 
physical activity, promoting a healthy 
and balanced diet and emotional 
wellbeing by providing better access to 
services in schools and children’s centres

2012-2015 NHS Brent to March 13 

and CCG from April 13.

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy

Page 43



32 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Priority 2: Narrowing the gap between those children who do well and those who need extra support to thrive, so the aspi-

rations of every Brent child are realised. We must also ensure there are sufficient school places to meet continuing increase 

in demand.

Outcome Action – What are we going to do? Timescale Lead, lead 
department 

Link to other strategies/

plans/projects

4.  Children and young 
people enjoy their 
education and achieve 
the best results they 
can.

s฀฀#ONTINUE฀TO฀CHALLENGE฀AND฀SUPPORT฀
schools in narrowing the gaps in 
attainment between specific groups of 
pupil and all other pupils.

2014 School 
Improvement 
Service, 
schools

BCP, Children and Families 
DMT

s฀฀฀!DDRESS฀THE฀INCREASING฀DEMAND฀FOR฀SCHOOL฀
places due to high levels of migration.

2014

5.  Enabling vulnerable 
children and young 
people including LAC, 
SEN and disability to 
thrive and realise their 
aspiration.

s¬฀3TRENGTHEN฀CAPACITY฀TO฀SUPPORT฀CHILDREN฀
with SEN in mainstream schools and 
develop existing special school provision 
to support a wider range of needs, 
better transitional care for children with 
disabilities.

2014 SEN Phase2 
project, BCP, 
Children and 
Families DMT 

SEN and Disability 
(Transitions and 0-13 One 
Council projects), Looked 
After Children Strategy, 
Youth and Connexions

s฀฀$EVELOPMENT฀OF฀SMARTER฀COMMISSIONING฀
through the West London Alliance 
(WLA) SEN Project to reduce the cost of 
out of borough placements.

2014 SEN Phase2 

project

SEN Phase2 project and 
Disability (Transitions and 
0-13 One Council projects

6.  Young people 
have the skills they 
need to achieve 
economic wellbeing in 
adulthood.

s฀฀)MPROVE฀POST฀��฀EDUCATION฀THAT฀
will result in lower youth and adult 
unemployment and therefore impact 
on reducing deprivation and poverty.

2011-2014 Youth and 

Connexions

NEET Partnership Strategy 
and 14-19 Strategy, Child 
Poverty Strategy

s฀฀)NCREASE฀THE฀NUMBER฀OF฀��฀
��฀YEAR฀OLDS฀
going into employment, education, 
training and apprenticeships.

2011-2014

s¬฀3UPPORT฀CHILDREN฀AND฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀
to participate in positive activities and 
engage with their communities.

2009-2011 Brent Youth 

Parliament

Youth Participation 
Strategy

Page 44



33A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Priority 3: To fully integrate services to develop resilient families.

Outcome Action – What are we going to do? Timescale
Lead, lead 
department and 
partners

Link to other strategies/
plans/projects

7.  Children and young 
people achieve their 
full potential

s฀฀)MPROVE฀OUTCOMES฀FOR฀THE฀MOST฀
vulnerable by increasing capacity 
of universal services for early 
identification and provision of 
preventative support.

2012−2014 Early help and 
education

Parenting Strategy; 
Multi Agency Family 
Intervention Project

s฀฀%MPOWER฀COMMUNITIES฀TO฀ENSURE฀A฀
child and family focused approach.

2012−2014 Early help and 
education

8.  Children, young 
people and families 
live free from poverty

s฀฀"Y฀FOCUSING฀ON฀OUR฀MOST฀DEPRIVED฀
neighbourhoods and families 
affected by housing benefit, we 
will help unemployed people into 
sustainable employment.

2012−2014 Children and 
Families, 
Regeneration and 
Major Projects 
including lead 
partners JCP and 
CNWL and NHS

Child Poverty Strategy, 
Employer Partnership, 
Housing strategy

s฀฀%NGAGE฀AND฀SUPPORT฀"RENT�S฀
unemployed social housing 
tenants and those in temporary 
accommodation to help them 
overcome barriers to employment 
and reduce dependency on benefits.

2012−2015 Children and 
Families, 
Regeneration and 
Major Projects, 
including lead 
partners JCP 

Regeneration Strategy

9.  Developing strong 
families to improve 
outcomes for children

s฀฀)DENTIFY฀TROUBLED฀FAMILIES฀AND฀OFFER฀
targeted support from children’s 
centres through a range of parenting 
programmes and support services.

2012−2015 Children and 
Families, SP&I and 
Regeneration and 
Major Projects

Parenting strategy, 
Working with families 
Project

s  Support interventions and services 
for families accessing multiple services 
across the council and partners

2012−2015 BCP Working with families 
Project.

Page 45



Employer 
Partnership

Brent Culture, 
Sport and 
Learning  
Forum

Strategic 
Theme

Partnership
Plans and 
Strategies

Crime 
Prevention 
Strategy  
Group

Housing 
Partnership

Partners for Brent 
(PfB) Executive

Brent’s Corporate  
Strategy

Departmental (C & F)  
Performance  

Improvement plan

PfB Strategic Forum

Children’s 
Partnership 

(BCP) 
Executive

Children’s 
Partnership 

(BCP)  
Forum

Brent  
Youth 

Parliament

Youth 
Participation 

Strategy

Children  
and Young  

Peoples  
Plan

s฀,!#฀3TRATEGY

s฀฀#HILD฀0OVERTY฀
Strategy

s฀��
��฀3TRATEGY

s฀฀0OST
INSPECTION฀ 
!CTION฀0LAN

s฀฀(EALTH฀AND฀
Wellbeing Strategy

s฀9/3฀0LAN

s฀0ARENTING฀3TRATEGY

s฀(OUSING฀3TRATEGY

s฀฀.%%4฀0ARTNERSHIP฀
Strategy

s฀$6฀3TRATEGY

LSCB 
Sub  

Groups

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Board  
(TBC)

LSCB 
Business 

Plan

Divisional 
Plan

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy

Local 
Safeguarding 

Children 
Board  
(LSCB)

Brent  
Sustainability

Forum

34 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Appendix A: Brent’s Partnership Arrangements

Page 46



35A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Priority 1: Ensure children and 

young people in our borough are 

healthy and safe. 

Priority 2: Narrowing the 

gap between those children 

who do well and those who 

need extra support to thrive, 

Priority 3: To fully integrate services to 

develop resilient families.

Corporate 
Strategy

One Borough: Thriving, sustainable 
and safe

One Community: Fulfill 
potential and Improve 
quality of life

One Council: Reduce poverty and 
inequality and improve services

Corporate Plan 
Improvement  
Priority

s฀฀2EDUCING฀WORKLESSNESS฀AND฀LOW฀
incomes

s฀฀3UPPORTING฀CHILDREN฀AND฀FAMILIES

s฀฀%NABLING฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀TO฀THRIVE

s฀฀2EDUCING฀CRIME฀AND฀FEAR฀OF฀CRIME

s฀฀$RIVING฀ECONOMIC฀OPPORTUNITY฀
and regeneration

s฀฀0ROTECTING฀OUR฀ENVIRONMENT

s฀฀฀#ONSISTENT฀ENGAGEMENT฀WITH฀
local communities

s฀฀฀!CHIEVING฀ORGANISATIONAL฀
efficiency

s฀3ERVICE฀IMPROVEMENT

s฀฀2EDUCING฀WORKLESSNESS฀AND฀
low incomes

s฀฀3UPPORTING฀CHILDREN฀AND฀
families

s฀฀%NABLING฀YOUNG฀PEOPLE฀TO฀
thrive

s฀฀2EDUCING฀CRIME฀AND฀FEAR฀OF฀
crime

s฀฀!DDRESSING฀HEALTH฀
inequalities and gap in life 
expectancy

s฀฀2EDUCING฀WORKLESSNESS฀AND฀LOW฀INCOMES

s฀฀3UPPORTING฀CHILDREN฀AND฀FAMILIES

s฀฀!DDRESSING฀HEALTH฀INEQUALITIES฀AND฀GAP฀
in life expectancy

s฀฀#ONSISTENT฀ENGAGEMENT฀WITH฀LOCAL฀
communities

s฀฀!CHIEVING฀ORGANISATIONAL฀EFlCIENCY

s฀3ERVICE฀IMPROVEMENT

s฀฀$RIVING฀ECONOMIC฀OPPORTUNITY฀AND฀
regeneration

s฀฀'REATER฀ACCESS฀TO฀AFFORDABLE฀HOUSING

s฀฀)NCREASING฀SPORTS฀AND฀LEISURE฀FACILITY

A Plan for 
Children and 
Families in  
Brent, 
outcomes

1.  Children and young people 
in our borough are safe and 
protected from harm and 
neglect

2.  Young people enjoy a safe 
environment, free of crime and 
anti social behaviour both inside 
and out of school.

3.  Babies, children, young people 
and families make a healthy 
start, make healthy choices and 
are emotionally and mentally 
healthy

5.  Children and young people 
enjoy their education and 
achieve the best results 
they can.

6.  Enable vulnerable children 
and young people 
including LAC, SEN and 
those with a disability to 
thrive and realise their 
aspiration. 

7.  Young people have the 
skills they need to achieve 
economic wellbeing in 
adulthood

8.  Children and young people achieve 
their full potential

9.  Children, young people and families 
live free from poverty

10.  Developing strong families to improve 
outcomes for children

Brent’s Child  
Poverty 
Strategy

s฀3UPPORTING฀TROUBLED฀FAMILIES 
s฀2EDUCE฀DOMESTIC฀VIOLENCE

s฀฀2EDUCE฀POVERTY฀LEVELS฀IN฀
low income households

฀s฀฀2EDUCTION฀IN฀.%%4฀ 
group

฀s฀฀)MPROVE฀lNANCIAL฀CAPACITY฀
of parents

s฀฀฀2EDUCE฀POVERTY฀n฀LOW฀INCOME฀
households 

s฀฀฀3UPPORTING฀TROUBLED฀FAMILIES

s฀฀฀)MPROVE฀lNANCIAL฀CAPACITY฀OF฀0ARENTS

s฀฀฀2EDUCTION฀IN฀FUEL฀POVERTY

s฀฀)MPROVE฀HEALTH฀AND฀WELLBEING฀WITH฀
focus on obesity and mental health

Brent’s Health  
and Wellbeing 
Strategy

s฀฀(ELPING฀VULNERABLE฀CHILDREN฀AND฀
families

s฀฀'IVING฀EVERY฀CHILD฀THE฀BEST฀
start in life

s฀฀%MPOWERING฀COMMUNITIES฀TO฀TAKE฀
better care of themselves 

s฀฀)MPROVING฀MENTAL฀WELLBEING฀THROUGHOUT฀
the life course

Appendix B: PCFB priorities and links to other 
strategies and priorities

Page 47



36 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Appendix C: Other strategies that link to the PCFB

Brent Child Poverty Strategy

This strategy aims to take forward the 

priorities raised in our needs assessment. 

It also provides a framework for partners 

to work collaboratively towards a 

common goal of reducing child poverty 

by ‘breaking the cycle of deprivation’. 

The strategy will also encourage new 

and innovative ways of working to 

address some of the challenges.

A strategy alone can achieve nothing 

without the full and explicit commitment 

of all key partners and communities, with 

who the local authority will co-operate in 

order to achieve our objectives. Setting 

out a shared vision and commitment 

with a clear rationale for tackling poverty 

is the purpose of this document. The 

fundamental purpose of a strategy is to 

ensure that all council services and local 

partners are working in a consistent way 

to do everything possible to reduce child 

poverty in the borough and ensure that 

we break the cycle of poverty that exists 

in our poorest neighbourhoods, but also 

prevent deprivation from spreading into 

other areas. 

The key priorities and outcomes 

identified in the Child Poverty Strategy 

are to:

s฀฀REDUCE฀POVERTY฀LEVELS฀OF฀CHILDREN฀

living in low income households

s฀SUPPORT฀TROUBLED฀FAMILIES

s฀REDUCE฀THOSE฀IN฀THE฀.%%4฀GROUP

s฀IMPROVE฀lNANCIAL฀CAPACITY฀OF฀PARENTS

s฀REDUCE฀THOSE฀IN฀FUEL฀POVERTY

s฀REDUCE฀DOMESTIC฀VIOLENCE฀RATES

s฀฀IMPROVE฀THE฀HEALTH฀AND฀WELLBEING฀

of children with a focus on reducing 

obesity, tooth decay and poor mental 

health.

Local Safeguarding Children’s 
Board (LSCB) business plan

Brent Local Safeguarding Children’s 

Board (LSCB) is currently developing 

a new business plan which covers the 

period 2012-15. It is informed by national 

and local agenda’s as well as key priorities 

that were identified at the LSCB business 

planning day on 23 May 2012.

The Munro report discusses the 

importance of senior leaders working 

together through the LSCB to provide 

local leadership for how agencies work 

together, however with the changing 

landscape of provision membership of 

the board will need to be revised. It is 

acknowledged that the Government 

response to Dr Eileen Munro’s Review 

of Child Protection is likely to impact on 

the role of LSCBs and this plan will be 

reviewed accordingly.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Youth participation strategy 
for Brent

The council established Brent Youth 

Parliament (BYP) in March 2007 to give 

children and young people a genuine 

voice in the affairs of the borough, and 

to implement the council’s obligations 

under the Children Act 2004. BYP 

provides ten to 19-year-olds with a 

safe space discuss the issues that are 

important to them and enables them 

to have a say in decisions about services 

that have an impact on them.

Elections were held in October 2011 to 

elect new members of youth parliament 

(MYPs) for the year 2011-2012. 

There are 72 seats on BYP. These are 

comprised of representatives aged 10 to 

19 from local schools, youth groups and 

targeted groups such as young people 

with disabilities, young people in care, 

young people who go to special schools 

and young people with refugee status. 

NEET Partnership Strategy and 
14-19 Strategy

Reducing the number of young people 

aged 16-18 who are not in education, 

employment or training (NEET) 

remains a key priority for Brent. This 

is a multi-agency partnership strategy 

that ensures information sharing and 

collaborative working to improve 

outcomes for children and young 

people who are likely to be NEET. This 

is done through targeted intervention 

and progression post 16. In addition 

to this the Youth and Connexions 

service offer a range of universal and 

targeted services appropriate to the 

needs of looked after children as well 

as other young people. In addition to 

the universal information, advice and 

guidance service, Connexions currently 

Page 48



37A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

also provides a more specialist service 

for those looked after young people 

who may require more sustained 

support in order to engage with their 

education, employment or training. 

A drop-in youth club for looked after 

young people runs on a weekly basis, 

and young people in care may also 

access the full range of projects and 

activities provided by the Youth and 

Connexions Services, including the 

summer university programme.

The NEET Strategy links to the 14-19 

Strategy and implementation plan and 

the 14-19 Agenda. The 14-19 Agenda 

states ‘local authorities have a duty to 

secure sufficient suitable education 

and training opportunities to meet the 

reasonable needs of all young people 

in their area.’ Young people are those 

who are over compulsory school age 

but under 19, or are aged 19 to 25 

and subject to a learning difficulty 

assessment. Local authorities also have 

a duty to secure sufficient suitable 

education and training for young 

people subject to youth detention. 

In deciding whether education or 

training is suitable, the local authority 

must have regard to, amongst other 

things, the quality of the education and 

training and may challenge where this 

is poor or inadequate. Brent is working 

with partners to shape provision in this 

area by identifying gaps, enabling new 

provision and developing the market to 

establish pre and post 16 provision and 

to establish a network for providers 

offering apprenticeships. 

 

 

 

 

 

Brent Parenting Strategy 

The basis of the parenting strategy is to 

ensure all parents have access to a core 

offer of ‘information, transparency, 

assessment, participation and feedback 

based on universal, targeted and 

specialist provision’. The principles 

underpinning this strategy are based on 

offering support to vulnerable children 

and adults within the same family. The 

strategy acknowledges that identifying 

children and families requiring 

parenting support is a mainstream 

activity that is a fundamental aspect 

of core service delivery rather than an 

additional responsibility. Therefore 

services that have been identified 

within the strategy need to assume 

the parenting support responsibilities 

outlined and ensure that the holistic 

needs of children and families are met 

to achieve sustainable improvements. 

Services will address and acknowledge 

the complexity and importance of the 

parenting role for the different stages 

in a child’s or young person’s life and 

support will empower and develop 

parents’ and families’ abilities, rather 

than directing them. In order that 

we respond to the needs of parents 

in a meaningful way, it is important 

that high quality support is offered at 

different levels and at different stages, 

enabling parents to access support, feel 

confident and competent about their 

parenting abilities. 

Brent Youth Offending Plan

The purpose of the plan is to provide 

services, support and strategic advice 

to families that will help to prevent 

further offending, by children and 

young people aged 8-17. The service 

promotes positive social behaviour, 

and ensures that children and young 

people who have offended are given 

the opportunity to become responsible 

and active citizens. Partnership working 

is a key element of this plan as well as 

early intervention and crime reduction 

activities, to reduce offending.

Brent Strategy for Looked 
After Children and Care 
Leavers 2011-2014

Brent has high ambitions for children 

in care and care-leavers. The strategy 

was agreed following consultation with 

children and young people who are 

both looked after and care-leavers. It 

reflects statutory guidance and good 

practice, and as well as providing an 

overall vision, will also directly link into 

individual case planning. The Brent 

Strategy for Looked After Children and 

Care-Leavers 2011-2014 action plan 

provides further detail of the execution 

of this strategy.  

Page 49



38 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2012-2015

The aim of this strategy is to achieve a 

sustained reduction in the inequalities 

in health and wellbeing experienced 

between Brent’s most-deprived and 

least-deprived neighbourhoods so that 

all residents can live long, fulfilling and 

healthy lives. 

The four key priorities for the health 

and well being strategy are :-

s฀฀฀'IVING฀EVERY฀CHILD฀THE฀BEST฀START฀ 

in life

s฀฀฀(ELPING฀VULNERABLE฀CHILDREN฀ 

and families

s฀฀฀%MPOWERING฀COMMUNITIES฀TO฀TAKE฀

better care of themselves

s฀฀฀)MPROVING฀MENTAL฀WELLBEING฀

throughout the life course

Housing Strategy 2009-2014

Brent’s Housing Strategy has 

an identified priority to tackle 

homelessness and reduce temporary 

accommodation by maintaining 

emphasis on preventative services 

and exploring opportunities to 

improve access to appropriate housing 

solutions. The council also assists in 

the re-housing of care-leavers at the 

appropriate time, through direct 

provision as well as advice and guidance 

on housing options.

 
 
 
 

Crime Prevention Strategy 
2008-2011

The Crime and Disorder 1998 Act 

places a duty upon the responsible 

authorities in each local authority to 

implement a strategy for reduction in 

crime, disorder, the misuse of drugs 

and behaviour damaging to the 

environment. The main purpose of this 

strategy is to tackle and reduce violence 

in all forms. There are three distinct 

areas of activity that the strategy aims 

to address: domestic violence, guns, 

knives and gangs and robbery. 

Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy incorporating the 
Cultural Strategy 2010-2015

The strategy requires the many 

different providers of sport and 

physical activity to work together in 

partnership to improve coordination, 

reduce duplication and maximise 

resources, to give Brent’s communities 

the greatest opportunities to 

participate in sport and physical 

activity. The Sports and Physical Activity 

Strategy will help achieve the vision of 

Brent’s Cultural Strategy to ‘develop a 

range of cultural opportunities that are 

engaging and accessible’. 

Page 50



39Page 51



40 A Plan for Children and Families in Brent 2012-2015
06.12BDU6616Page 52



1 

 

* 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Issue for committee to consider Outcome Recommendations 

13 June 
2012 

Brent Youth 
Parliament 
 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider. 

No representation from BYP at 
this meeting. 

 

 Achievement at KS5 
and destinations 

Committee will be presented with a 
short report on KS5, A level results 
analysis for individual schools in 
Brent.  Report will also include the 
Destinations report, which is a 
report on school leavers and 
progression after leaving 
school.  Report will be presented by 
John Galligan. 

Report was noted by members of 
the committee.  Breakdown of the 
type of “other courses” started in 
2011 in the table in section 3.7 
requested.  This information is not 
available as yet as students have 
not completed their courses.  To 
be followed up later in the year. 

 

 Expansion of Brent 
Schools 

Progress Report on Brent being 
allocated the best Capital 
Settlement in the country and an 
update on the 2 application bids 
under the ‘Priority Schools Building 
Programme’ for Alperton and 
Copland.  Committee will consider 
the plans on expanding Brent 
schools.  Report will be presented 
by Rik Boxer. 

Report was noted by members of 
the committee. 

 

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme – 2012/13 

 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 53



2 

 

 Analysis of 
educational 
achievement by 
ethnicity 

Report focussing in particular on 
attainment levels of under achieving 
groups in the borough. 

Report was noted by members of 
the committee.  Copy of the work 
programme mentioned in 4.7 of 
the report was requested. Query 
about why the ‘White other’ group 
was not filtered down into further 
groups and why was there no 
analysis on the individual groups 
that fall into this 
category.  Naureen to feedback 
and provide information 
requested 

 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Issue for committee to consider Outcome  

19 July 2012 Brent Youth 
Parliament 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background of 
Auditing Practices in 
Brent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider.  
 
The chair has requested for a report 
on the auditing procedures and 
findings for Brent schools.  In 
addition to this information 
regarding governing practices and 
support to governors has also been 
requested.  Report will also include 
an outline of procedures with C&F 
to ensure probity and correct 
auditing procedures and policies are 
in place.  Report will be presented 
by Mustafa Salih, AD Strategic 
Finance CF and Simon Lane, Head 
of Audit & Investigations. 

BYP to be invited to contribute 
ideas to the committee’s work 
programme. 

 

 

Report was noted and an update 
report is submitted to committee 
in six months’ time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 54



3 

 

 
Safeguarding and 
LAC action 
plan/Adoption 
inspection and 
Adoption Scorecard 
update 
 
 

 
Committee will be presented with an 
update on the action plan and an 
opportunity to scrutinise progress in 
its implementation.  Report on the 
latest inspection of Adoption 
services will also be provided with 
an update on new Adoption 
scorecards.  Report will be 
presented by Graham Genoni. 
 
 
 
 

The committee received an 
update from Hilary Brooks on the 
Adoption inspection and Adoption 
Scorecards and the report was 
noted.  Members requested to 
know how many trans racial 
adoptions have taken place in 
Brent in the last 2 years. 

The Safeguarding and LAC action 
plan item was deferred to the 
October committee meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date Item Issue for committee to consider Outcome  

11 October 
2012 

Brent Youth 
Parliament 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider.  
 

Thivya Jeyashankar, chair of BYP 
provided an update on what the 
BYP have been doing.  BYP 
elections are on 17.11.12.  Visits 
to schools have been very 
successful and recommend that 
members also take the time to 
visit schools to give children a 
real insight.   

BYP would like see the 
subjects of bullying and 
work experience on the 
agenda.  Members also 
requested information 
about what is being done 
to tackle Gangs in Brent. 

  
 
Safeguarding and 
LAC action plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Committee will be presented with an 
update on the action plan and an 
opportunity to scrutinise progress in 
its implementation.  Report will be 
presented by Graham Genoni. This 
item was deferred at the last 
meeting. 

 
 
Plan was noted and members 
raised questions relating to social 
workers and requested the 
following information: 

• Number of permanent 
social workers 

• Number of newly qualified 
social workers 

 

P
age 55



4 

 

 
 

• Number of interim social 
workers 

 
 

 
  

 
Child Poverty 
Strategy 

 
 
Anna Janes & Tony Hirsch will 
present the report. 

 
 
Members noted the report and 
strategy, however expressed their 
concerns about the delivery of the 
action plan.   

 
 
It was recommended that 
this should be a regular 
item for the committee. It 
was also recommended 
that poverty implications 
should be considered in all 
reports to committee.  

 
Meeting Date Item Issue for committee to consider Outcome  

11 December 
2012 

Brent Youth 
Parliament 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider.  
 

  

 Working with 
Families Initiative 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members to receive an update on 
how this is being progressed.  This 
presentation  will outline what is 
being done to align services to 
work together for the family as a 
whole and how this encompasses 
partnership working.  This includes  
looking at how to bring partners 
together  to create a Multi Agency 
Service Hub in the new civic 
centre.  This will be presented by 
Sara Williams. 

  

P
age 56



5 

 

 
 
Implementing the 
Children & Young 
Peoples Plan 
 

    
 
Members will be presented with the 
plan and a covering report outlining 
the partnership structure and 
proposed outcomes of the plan. 
 

  
Corporate Parenting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Members will receive a report on 
Brent’s model of corporate 
parenting in comparison to other 
local authorities. Including reasons 
for our approach and details of 
member involvement in the 
process.  Examples of Best 
Practice models will be presented 
to members for discussion.  An 
update on the LAC virtual school 
will also be included. 

  

Meeting Date Item Issue for committee to consider  Outcome  

12 February 
2013 

Brent Youth 
Parliament 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bullying in Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider.  
 
Request from BYP for the 
committee to request a report on 
how this is being tackled in Brent 
schools.  A best practice 
presentation from a Brent school 
would be beneficial. 
 

  

P
age 57



6 

 

Youth Offending 
Task Group 
 
 
Early Years 
Intervention Task 
Group 
 

Members to receive a progress 
update on the recommendations 
made by the task group. 
 
Members to receive a progress 
update on the recommendations 
made by the task group. 
 

 

Meeting Date  Item Issue for committee to consider Outcome  

20 March 
2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brent Youth 
Parliament 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Short breaks 
provision 
 
 
 
Services for SEN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The members of the Brent Youth 
Parliament will be invited to provide 
an update on their work since the 
committee last met, as well as to 
raise any issues of concern they 
would like the committee to 
consider. 
 
Committee to be presented with a 
report on how the provision for 
respite centres has been tackled 
and resolved. 
 
Committee to receive an update 
report following the changes that 
have been made to the service.  
How are we addressing the issue 
of placing children outside of the 
borough? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 58



7 

 

 

 

 

 

Items from the Forward Plan and Work Programme to be timetabled. 
 
The committee will be presented with a list of items related to children and young people’s services on the 
Forward Plan, to decide whether there are any they wish to scrutinise. The committee’s work programme will also 
be included on the meeting agenda 

 

Item Issue for the committee to consider  

Impact and Service Improvement 
Report 

Anna Janes to provide information and will present the report.  

Domestic Violence – Children’s 
Partnership Project 

The committee will consider the Children’s Partnership report on 
domestic violence in Brent, following up previous presentations to the 
committee on this issue.  

 

Youth service review update As requested by the committee in October 2010, the committee will 
receive an update on the progress of the on going youth services 
review, being carried out by the Children’s Trust Sub Group. 

 

Local Safeguarding Children’s 
Board (LSCB) Annual report April 
2012 

Update report against the LSCB action plan goes to executive on 19 
September 2012.   

 

Early Years  
 

Committee to be presented with a report on how the provision for early 
years has changed and what these changes mean for Brent.  Report 
will be from a policy perspective. 

 

Educational Benefits of all through 
schools 

Suggestion for a report covering the benefits and disadvantages of all 
through schools for members to consider. 

 

Adoption and Fostering annual Report goes to Executive on 19 September 2012.   Main action of report 
is to increase recruitment and to move children out of Independent 

 

P
age 59



8 

 

report April 2011 to March 2012 Fostering Agencies (IFS’s) 

A plan for Children and Families in 
Brent (PSCFB) 2012-2015 

Report on how Brent is will provide the support to ensure that children 
and young people in Brent are healthy and safe.  The aim is to narrow 
the gap between those children who do well and those who need extra 
support to thrive.  Report goes to Executive on 19 September 2012.  

 

Travel Plans and Parking Permits for 
schools 

Report on the progress made on school travel planning, the process for 
school parking permits and future priorities. 

 

Child Poverty Strategy It was agreed by members at the October meeting that this should be a 
regular item on the agenda and that members should receive regular 
updates on the work being done around this. This area links into various 
other projects and strategies and therefore will be presented to the 
committee as part of those. 

 

Payment by Results in Early Years This initiative is aimed at children’s centres and is a project to identify 
families with children in the 0-5 year age group.  Sue Gates is the 
project manager. 

 

Youth Service Review Not yet complete.  Lead officer is Cathy Tyson.  

Academies and Free Schools Members have requested a report clarifying the current situation in 
Brent in relation to which schools are academies.  What is the current 
policy on this? 

 

Review of young people’s services Committee to receive a report on the proposed restructure and how this 
will bring the different strands together. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 60



9 

 

Items on the Forward Plan 07 2012-13 

 

Decisions will be taken by Executive 
between 1 Nov 2012 and 31 Dec 2012.  

Policy and Performance Tel: 020 8937 
1609 andrew.davies@brent.gov.uk 

 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy. To approve the borough’s joint health 
and wellbeing strategy following public consultation due be completed 
at the end of October 2012. 

 

 

Decision will be taken by Executive 
between 1 Dec 2012 and 31 Jan 2013. 

Director of Children and Families Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

Authority to invite tenders for a Speech and Language Therapy service 
from June 2013.  To approve a one year extension to the current 
contract with the incumbent for the Key Stage 1&2 and Key Stage 3&4 
speech and language therapy service in mainstream Brent schools, on 
the basis that there is a proposed review of services to determine 
whether there are merits and savings/efficiencies to be made by 
commissioning the service jointly with health. 

 

Decision will be taken by Executive on 
12 Nov 2012 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

Authority for exemption to award contracts to Brent Academies for 
Services formerly delivered to Brent Council via Service Level 
Agreement.  To grant an exemption to the competitive requirements of 
Standing Orders to allow the direct award of contracts to up to 3 
academies. 

 

 

Decision will be taken by the Executive 
on 12 Nov 2012 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

Authority for exemption to award up to a three year contract for Special 
Educational Needs Independent Special School provision. To agree an 
exemption to the competitive requirements of Standing Orders to allow 
the direct award of a contract. 

 

 

 

P
age 61



10 

 

Decision will be taken by Executive on 
10 Dec 2012. 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

SEN and Disability Strategy 2013-2016 To note the progress to date on 
development priorities for SEN and to approve the priorities contained 
within the SEN and Disability Strategy document for 2013-2016. Brent 
Council’s strategy for children and young people aged 0-25 years with 
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) will replace the 
previous SEND strategy produced in 2007 which was supplemented by 
the Education Accessibility Strategy published in 2010. The strategy 
contributes to our commitments outlined in our high level plan for 
Children and Families and has been developed from the One Council 
project review of SEND services and provision which is a two year 
review due for completion in 2013. Whilst the project review is designed 
to provide better services, increase our performance and reduce costs, 
it will also ensure that through this strategy our policy and practice will 
reflect the many changes and recommendations made at national level. 
These include the Equality Act (2010) and the government Green Paper 
Support and Aspiration: a new approach to special educational a new 
approach to special educational needs and disability (2011). 

 

Decision will be taken by the Executive 
on 10 Dec 2012. 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

2013/14 Fair Funding Formula for Schools. To approve the amended 
Formula that determines individual school budgets for Brent schools in 
light of regulatory changes introduced by the Department for Education. 

 

Decision will be taken by the Executive 
on 10 Dec 2012 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

Authority to award contract (contract to be a framework agreement) for 
the provision of School Meals Services to Brent Schools for December 
2012. To authorise the award of the framework agreement for the 
provision of School Meals. Services to Brent Schools in December 
2012. 

 

Decision will be taken by the Executive Fostering report. To note the contents of the annual report with regard  

P
age 62



11 

 

on 10 Dec 2012 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

to the Fostering Service which updates on the progress during April 
2011 to March 2012 and refers to concerns identified around the 
placement budget. Action is to increase recruitment and moving 
children out of Independent Fostering Agencies (IFAs). 

Decision will be taken by the Executive 
on 10 Dec 2012 

Director of Children and Families  Tel: 
020 8937 3126 
krutika.pau@brent.gov.uk 

Children and Young People - eligibility for assisted travel. To note the 
report and agree to implementation of the new policy from April 2013. 
The council has worked with the West London alliance (WLA) to 
develop a common policy for deciding when assistance with transport to 
school will be provided. The purpose of the policy is to have parity with 
neighbouring boroughs in determining assistance with transport. The 
policy also focuses on developing independence and independent travel 
skills, and making best use of resources available to the council. 

 

Expected date of decision by Executive 
on 18 Dec 2012 

Head of Transportation Tel: 020 8937 
5151 paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk 

Malorees Schools - petition for road safety measures To consider a 
request for road safety measures in the vicinity of Malorees Schools. 

 

Expected date of decision by Executive 
on 7 Feb 2013 

Head of Transportation Tel: 020 8937 
5151 paul.chandler@brent.gov.uk 

School parking arrangements. To consider the report from Head of 
Safer Streets outlining the results of parking compliance surveys at 
schools, an examination of potential equalities issues and 
recommendation for future enforcement prioritization. 

 

Expected date of decision by Executive 
on 14 Jan 2013 

Property and Asset Management, Tel: 
020 8937 1334, 
richard.barrett@brent.gov.uk 

Secondary School Places Strategy 2020-21 To agree the strategy for 
meeting the demand for secondary school places by reviewing existing 
secondary school capacity and recommendations for meeting the 
projected demand up to 2020/21. 

 

P
age 63



12 

 

Expected date of decision by Executive 
on 14 Jan 2013 

Property and Asset Management, Tel: 
020 8937 1334, 
richard.barrett@brent.gov.uk 

Vicar's Green Primary School Expansion Funding Agreement To agree 
the funding agreement for the expansion of vicars green primary school 
as part of the primary school expansion programme (based on the 
Executive approval in August 2012). 

 

 

P
age 64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting held on 11 October 2012
	5 Plan for Children and Families in Brent
	plan-for-children-and-families-in-brent-appendix

	8 Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

